th Fl i

S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP "2 Block, North W

Chartered Accountants No. 4, Rajiv Gandhi Salai
Taramani, Chennai - 600 113

India

Tel: +91 44 6117 9000

Independent Auditors' Examination Report on the restated summary statement of
assets and liabilities as at September 30, 2025, December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022,
restated summary statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), restated summary statement of cash flows and changes in equity for each of
the nine month period ended September 30, 2025 and years ended December 31, 2024,
2023 and 2022, summary statement of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information of Bonfiglioli Transmissions Limited (collectively, the
"Restated Summary Statements").

To,

The Board of Directors

Bonfiglioli Transmissions Limited

Plot No. AC 7-AC11, SIDCO Industrial Estate, Thirumudivakkam,
Kancheepuram - 600132, Tamil Nadu, India

Dear Sirs:

1. We have examined the attached Restated Summary Statements of Bonfiglioli
Transmissions Limited (formerly known as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private
Limited) (the “Company”) annexed to this report and prepared by the Company for the
purpose of inclusion in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (‘DRHP”) in connection with its
proposed Initial Public Offer (“IPO”). The Restated Summary Statements, which have been
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on February 05,
2026, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of:

a) Section 26 of Part | of Chapter IIl of the Companies Act 2013 (the "Act");

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and

¢) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) (as
amended) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"), (the
“Guidance Note”).

Management's Responsibility for the Restated Summary Statements

2. The preparation of the Restated Summary Statements, which are to be included in the
DRHP is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Restated Summary
Statements have been prepared by the Management of the Company on the basis of
preparation, as stated in note 2.1 to the Restated Summary Statements. The
Management's responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining adequate
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Restated Summary
Statements. The Management is also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the
Company complies with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note.

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Auditors' Responsibilities

3. We have examined such Restated Summary Statements taking into consideration:

a) the terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed with you vide our
engagement letter dated October 31, 2025, requesting us to carry out the assignment,
in connection with the proposed IPO of the Company;

b) the Guidance Note. The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics Issued by ICAL

c) concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on the
verification of evidence supporting the Restated Summary Statements; and

d) The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations.

Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to
your compliance with the Act and the ICDR Regulations in connection with the IPO.

Restated Summary Statements

4. These Restated Summary Statements have been compiled by the management of the
Company from:

a) the audited interim financial statements of the Company, as at and for the nine month
period ended September 30, 2025, which was prepared in accordance with the
accounting principle generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 34 specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and which were approved by
the Board of Directors on February 05, 2026.

b) Audited financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial years ended
December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 which were prepared
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (referred to as “Ind AS") as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, which have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting
held on April 16, 2025, April 02, 2024 and April 05, 2023, respectively.

Auditors Report

5. For the purpose of our examination, we have relied on:

a. Auditors’ report issued by us dated February 05, 2026 on the audited interim financial
statements of the Company as at and for the nine-month period ended September 30,
2025, as referred in Paragraph 4(a) above.

b. Auditors’ reports issued by us, dated April 16, 2025, April 02, 2024 and April 05,
2023, respectively on the financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial
years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
respectively, as referred in Paragraph 4(b) above.
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6. The audit reports on the financial statements as at and for the financial years ended
December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 issued by us, as referred
in paragraph 5 above, contain the following which do not require any adjustment in the
Restated Summary Statements:

a. The report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements included in the auditor’s
report on the financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial years
ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 included
modifications relating to the maintenance of books of account and other matters
connected therewith (included in Annexure VIl to the Restated Summary Statements),
which did not require any corrections in the attached Restated Summary Statements.

b. The auditor's report on the financial statements of the Company included
qualifications in the report on the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of Section 143 of the Act
(“CARO 2020”) as at and for the financial years ended December 31, 2024, December
31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 (included in Annexure VIl to the Restated Summary
Statements), which did not require any corrections in the attached Restated Summary
Statements.

7. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us
as at and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2025 and as at and for the
financial year ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, we
report that Restated Summary Statements of the Company:

i. have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting
policies, material errors and regrouping/reclassifications retrospectively in the
financial years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31,
2022 to reflect the same accounting treatment as per the accounting policies and
grouping/classifications followed as at and for the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2025;

ii. there are no qualifications in the auditors' reports on the audited financial statements
of the Company as at and for the financial years ended December 31, 2024,
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, and on the audited interim financial
statements as at and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2025, which
require any adjustments to the Restated Summary Statements. However, there are
modifications in our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements relating to
the maintenance of books of account and other matters connected therewith and
items relating to qualifications in CARO 2020, as disclosed in Annexure VIl to the
Restated Summary Statements, which do not require any adjustment to the Restated
Summary Statements; and

iii. have been prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance
Note.
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8. We have not audited any financial statements of the Company as of any date or for any
period subsequent to September 30, 2025. Accordingly, we express no opinion on the
financial position, results of operations, cash flows and statement of changes in equity of
the Company as of any date or for any period subsequent to September 30, 2025.

9. This report should not in any way be construed as a reissuance or re-dating of any of the
previous audit reports issued by us, nor should this report be construed as a new opinion
on any of the financial statements referred to herein.

10.The Restated Summary Statements do not reflect the effects of events that occurred
subsequent to the audited financial statements mentioned in paragraph 4(a) above.

11.We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring
after the date of the report.

12.0ur report is intended solely for use of the Board of Directors for inclusion in the DRHP to
be filed with Securities and Exchange Board of India, National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and BSE Limited, in connection with the proposed IPO. Our report should not be
used, referred to, or distributed for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Chirag Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 121648
UDIN: 26121648VJZCTX3988
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: February 05, 2026




Date: February 05, 2026

<Z5J Bonfiglioli
ey e eo ey
iT i Limited (F y known as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited)
A 1 - Restated Si y St of Assets And Liabilities
CIN: U29309TN1998PLCO40717
(All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Asat As at As at As at
Note 30, 2025 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Assets
[Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,358.34 2,481 46 2,396.48 168234
Capital work-in-progress 3 155.28 112.21 202.57 96 39
Intangible assets 3 177 304 23.18 18.53
I ible assets under devel 3 11.73 946 - =
Rught-of-use asset 3 317.83 343.07 38104 342381
Financial assets

1. Investments + 113 113 113 LI13

1. Loans 57 92.40 92.40 i #

ii. Other financial assets 6A 59.63 55.56 54.59 190.73
Deferred tax assets (Net) 8 256.01 161.80 175.08 142.30
Nan-Current tax assets (Net) 194 4.92 492 26.93 35.53
Other non-current assets TA 88.13 7439 71.84 70.81
Total non-current assets 3,347.17 3,339.44 3,332.84 2,580.57
Current assects
Inventaries g 3,356 72 3,107.00 3.315.60 2,628 42
Financial assets

i. Trade receivables 10 4.787.26 +.095.62 +,103.34 3.767 40

ii. Cash and cash equvalents vl 1,416.23 1,446 67 905 32 1,086 71

iii. Bank balances other than (i1} above 12 23000 0.94 1.700.12 1.680.42

iv. Loans 3B 36.06 12611 - -

iv. Other financial assets 6B 79.76 147 87 65359 77.28
Current 1ax assets (net) 198 - 82.30 92.53 7096
Other current assets K] 517.60 351 56 +43.36 325.78
Total current assets 10,443.63 9,358.07 10.625.86 9,636.97
Total azsets 13,790.80 12,697.51 13,958.70 12,217.54
Equity and linbilities
Equity
Equity share capital 13 1,253.31 1.253.31 1.311.23
Other equity 14 7.999.65 7,277 61 6,742.12 5.942.51
Total equity 9,252.96 8,530.92 8,053.35 7,253.74
Non-current liahilitics
Financial linbilities

i. Lease liabilities 184 5.43 28.09 6010 19.56

ii. Other financial Labilities 16A 12.10 1.82 20.3} 1104
Provisions I7A 11340 10635 107.59 90 04
Total non-current liabilitics 131.93 136.26 188.00 120.64
Current liabilities
Contract linbilities 2 32.69 50.40 31.33 2373
Financial liabilities

i. Borrowings £5 - - 1,107.86 1437 54

ia Lease liabilities 188 32.51 37 48 36 56 3709

ir Trade payables 20

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterpnses 533.01 382.72 588.60 48176
Total autstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 3.26568 2,710.88 3,227.00 2.13533
small enterprises

. Other financial liabilities 168 108.52 H775 27585 21603
Current tax Liability (net) 198 166.36 - - -
Other current liabilities 21 65.56 194.56 135.81 10109
Provisions 178 201.58 206.54 31434 21069
Total current liabilities 4.405.91 4.030.33 5.717.35 4,843.16
Total liabilities 4,537.84 4.166.59 5,905.35 4.963.80
Total <quity and liabilities 13,790.80 12,697.51 13,958.70 12,217.59
The above balance sheet should be read in c with the ving A V- v of rial g policies and explanatory notes forming part of Restated
Summary Statement of Assets & Libilitites, Annexuse VI - Notes to Restated S S and A VI - S of ad o R S v Statements.

[ This is the balance sheet referred to 1 our report of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of

Chartered Accountants Bonfiglioli Transmissions Limited

ICAI Firm Regi (Formesly Rnown as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited) 4/'/

CIN: U29309TN1998; 717
)
r Chirag Shah G A Balaji Sunil Kumar

Partner Whole Time Director Maxm‘lng Disector Company Secretary
and Chief Financal
Officer

Membership Number: 121 DIN: 06630726 DiN. 08110794 M No: ASB3168

Place: Chennai Place: Chennas Place: Chenrai Place: Chennau

Date. February 05, 2026 Date. February 05, 2026 Date: Februarv 652026
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%D Sonfiglhio
TP e
Bontlgliolt Trsnamisatass Limitod (Focmerls known a3 Donfiglloli Transmissions Foivate Lininl
A - v of Profit and Loas {| other il /(loas))
t11r: U29309TN1998PLCO40717
A sisonnea i Milliosts of foding Yapers mnie o sthea e st
Rine mnnthn poriod anded Vour ambed Yous wonled Ren ended
Rate Aeptembur 30, 2035 Srecwnbive 51, D34 Dveratbar 18, 200 Deviomties 38, 0032
-untinabng Operations
Prgoe - 14,061 74 14640 79 1 875 07 Ih a0l
Mrventie frm apeiatian : 7 i 5595 i 11531
e ey Rt
% 7. 2 17,015.78 15,74
Tatal Incaine 14,679 53 18,710.52 R
Lpanaes
n of raw materinde & components conmumed 23 2 107.94 11.8u5 52 1L !2 32 a921 (_ii)
Chaanges d1 inveataries af lnished goads and waork-in-piogresy 2B 10484 43 06 {268 3b) 19 5%
Fmiplates Beaeiie sxpriss 27 75021 981 34 89593 BOO 56
O TR i rE 5296 104 25 13058 70 76
Pregrar ko wnd amortisation sapenas 24 33114 450 27 363.07 337 75
Fithe crpenses 30 2.104 68 279956 1594.30 232204
Total expetiacs 12,3651.07 16,264, 70 13,927 44 BiaAanzas
{Reatated Profit before tax from continuing oprrations T 21B.AT LA443.82 209234 LA5) 20
Tan exprnsc:
Curtent tax 31 654 02 37781 115 EERIEE)
Tax prrouning 1o earlier yoars a3l [CR Y] 158,581 a2 1.2 87}
Deferred tas Ji 193 40) 18 53 (AR} (7 0]
[ Total tax expurse 366 34 ERENT] B13.36 3463 /7
Reatuted Profit ofter tax for the peried/year o cuntinuing aperations 1,651 89 191125 1,476.98 168753
fssintinued Operations
o from Disventiued Opcrations before tax 32 22 P A Thbd
+i4. an dispoaal of darantinued Gperations 2 374
14 Exprases of Discontinued Operations a2 119 13 6o ey
Reatated Drollt alter taX for the perinA vrar livmm dRcantinied Sparatiang 3766 [ T
Roeststed Profit after tax for the perlod/year 1,651.89 1,946.89 1,498.25 1,714.49
Gther comprehensive tncomu:
rewts thut Will ot be sevlanmtied to profin o lans in subsequent periots
Fer i gtme s lost al posi-cmployment Uenelit abligationy 2y H a5} (2350 237
f60 i 1ax relating fo the above iem ual 225 1347 5o
Other campeshenslve iucomed lusy) for the period/yvar, net of tax 12.4G) {6.70} 10 4] 1650
Ruslated totul camprehonsive income for the poriod/yeas, net of tax ) 1,649.49 1,940.19 1,455.21 1,730.79
testnied Earmings per cquity share: [Namuind value per share: Rz 10 December 31,
2024, Becember 11 2023, December 31, 2022 Ry [0}
Reatnted Eamings per Equity Shire: (Basic and Diluted) - Cuntinuing Operalions 33 875 1D 06 7] 87
rate 5 per Eyuny Shace: [Basic nnd Diluted) - Discontuinuzd Opcrationa kE] 01y o n s
Reatated Eamungs per Equiss Share (Basie and Diluted) - Continuing &
I3isconnn d Operatens 34 8,59 1025 ¥ 4 Hs
The alis= atatement of pratit and tows not annualissd foc September 30, 2023 should be sead in i) with the a¢ ving Anassure V- Summary of material accounting pulicies and caplanatury
sofes ‘oninag poart of Restated Summary Statement of Anseta & Liabilities, Annesure VI - Nutes (o Restatetd Summary Stalements and Anaexure V- Statemcnt of adjusiments to Kextated Summann
Satements
Vhis i the statemens of praiic and Joss referresd 10 in owe report of e1en date
lor §.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and an behall of the Board sf
‘Churterea Accountants Hontighell Transmissiame, Limited
ICA] Ejrin i 101049W/ {Formerly Known aa T Pravate L i
CL BI0I0STRIBYUNPLEOAO? LT ‘”’
7 [x/‘/ \ o
N W G
\\,“ AR
:
G A Balaji Bunnait Vaipully Bunil Kumai
Whale Time Matvaiia e bas Cumpary 8 e
Director aml i
Thuel Finanoad kl
Qlficer
Memiersiip Number 121098 DIN: 06630726 [N D81 10794 M No' 338168
Plinr Caennai Blnce: Cheunat Pluce: Chennai e Cleensn
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a5 Bonfiglioli

B T i Limited (| y known as Tra issi Private Limited)
S of Cash Flows

- v
CIN: U29309TN1998PLCO40717
{All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Nine Month Period

Year ended Year ended Year ended December
eaded Septauitier 20, 31, 2024 31, 2023 31, 2022
2025
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Restated Profit before tax from Continuing and Di: i d O, 221847 2.491.62 2.116.75 2.287 23
Adjustments for

Profit from discontinued operations {22.06) 2341 {36 03|

Gain on disposal of discontinuing Operations 23 74)

Depreciation and amortisation expense 310.76 407 60 31297 298 26

Amortisation - Right-of-use asset 30.38 42,67 30.10 39.49

Allowance for doubtful debts no longer required written back (9.50) i3.95)

Interest income ©0.89) ©65.01) (140.12) {114 .86)

Provision for sales tax disputes 110

Allowance for doubtful debts 23.24 1.09

n on sale of property, plant and equipment (112 ©97) (064} (0.45))

Finance cost excluding interest on lease liabifines 50.18 97.31 12515 64.78

[nterest expense on Lease liabilities 278 6.94 533 598

Provision for product warranty 80 42 8148 100 41 74.30

Net foreign exchange differences (unrealised) 173 (17.19) 2391 19.39

Gain on termination of lease (6 29)

Lass on disposal of property. plant and equipment 231 0.57 3.93
Operating Profit before working capital changes 2,619.23 3.022.496 2,569.43 2,640.28
Working capital adjustments:

Increase in trade receivables 645 79) (1487) (310.36) (427.87)]

(Increasej/Decrease in inventories (249.72) 208 60 (687.20) 56 .80

{Increase}/Decrease in other financal assets 68.95 1249.16} 460 {15.80)

Increase/ (Decreasce] in rade payables 673.35 (703 48) 953.36 (252.27)

(Inerease]/ Decrease in other assets (168.00) 8591 (118.20) 162.80

Decrease in provisions 181.00) (128 80) 68.60) (3092

Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial linbilities (241.00) (156.92) 35.40) 38 00

Decrease in other Contract liabilities (17.00)

Increase/ (Decrease) in other current Liabilities (129.00) 7790 42.30 (60.90)|
Cash generated from operations 1,830.02 2,141,634 2,339.73 2,110.12]
Cash flow from aperating activities - discontinued operations +4.59 4190 49.52
Tax paid (Continuing & DI I d C Netof relunds (412,004 (567 90} 616.90) (397 01|
Net cash inflow from operating activities® 1.418.02_ 1.618.33 1,774.73 1,562

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property. plant and equipment and mtangible assets (360 7G) (449.22] (1.92298) (66 1.60)

Praceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 21.13 8,40 2.00 (0.30)

Deposits made during the period/ vear (1.099.94) (6.750.90) (4.740.10} (7.429 40

Loans advanced (o related party 300.31) 218.50)

Loans repaid by related party 390.36

Proceeds from the deposits matured during the period/vear 850.94 8.350.10 +.870 10 7.340.00

Proceeds from Sale of Discontinued operations 2374

Interest income recewed 39.00 1700 13340 13540

Cash Flow From Investing A - C ing O (439.61) 1,180.62 (757.28) (615.90),

Cash Flow From ting A - op - 36.92 32.12) -

Cash Flow Fram/ (Used) Investing Activities - Continuing And Discontinued Operations #33.61) 1.217 54 1785.40] 61590}

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid (51005 {89.07) {12572 63.51j)
Payment of Principle partion of lease liabilities (2762 138.55) 150.501 48.27}]
Payment of Interest of lease liabilities (2.78) 6 50) 339 6 .00
Borrowings

Praceeds 50000 2.590.00 2.600.00
Repayments (1.607 90} i3319.480¢ 11.712 60|
Payment of Dividend 927.45) 689.30) 1655.60} {1.639.09)

Buyback of shares (352.89)
Ket cash used from financing activities (1,008.85]) [t ] (1.166.72} (869.38)
Net increase/(decxease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C} (30.44) 541.35 (181.39§ 77.35
L4446 67 905.32 1.086.71 1009.36

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning af the peniad/ year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period/ycar (Refer note 11) 141623 1,996.67 —__905.3Z

Note: Restated Summary Statement of Cash Flows has heen prepased under mdirect method set out in Ind AS 7 preseribed
“Includes amount spent in cash towards Corporate Social Responsbility Rs. 18.18 (2024 Rs 53 82,2023 Rs. 3706, 2022 Rs. 37 40}
This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date

1.086.71

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants Bonfiglioll Transmissions Limited
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W (Eormerly Known as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited)

: U29309TN1998PLCO40717
.
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i

G A Bakji Hy V Kaipally Sunil Komar
Partner Whole Time Director ng Directer Campany Secretary

and Chief Financal

Officer
Membership Number. 121048 DIN: 06630726 DIN: 08110794 M Vo: 433365
Place: Chenna Place. Chennai Mace: Chenna
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2.2

Brief dexcription of the Company

Banfigliali Transmissions Limited (the ‘Company/BTL' formerly known ax Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited) CIN: U29309TN1998FPLCO40717.
4 public imited enmpany incorporated and domiciled o (ndts. 1s 2 whally awned subsidiury of Bonfiglinli S.p A, ltaly The Company 1s ¢ngaged 1t the
business of manufacture and sale of and trading in gear boxes and gear motors

The Company is incorporated under the pravisions of the C ivs Act applicable in lodia. The registered nffice of the Company is located at Plot No.
ACT-ACL], SIDCO Industrial Estate, Thin i Kanchi am - 600132, Tamil Nadu, [ndia

The Company has converted from Privat: Limited Company to Public Limited Company, through a spevial resolutivn passed in the extriorduary
peneral meeting of the sharsholders of the Company held on September 01st, 2025 Consequently, the name of the Company has been changed ta
ioli Transmissions Limited f to a fresh certificate of incorporation issued bv the Registrar of Companies dated September 16th, 2025.

The C v's Restated Yy s were approved [or issue in avcordance with a resolution of the dircetors on February 03, 2026

Material aceounting policies

of C and Basis of Preparati

Preparation and compliance with Ind AS

The Restated Summary Statemznis of the Company comprise of Restated Summary Statement of Assets and Liabilities a5 at September 30, 2025,
Devember . 2024, December 31, 7023 and December 31. 2022, the Restated Summary Statement of Profit and Lass (including Qtier
Comprenenaive | /Lass). R d S Y of Changes in Equity and the Restated Summary Statement of Cash Flows for the mne-]
innth period ended September 30, 2025 and for the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 and the smaary
1»f material accounting policies and explanatory notes (Collectively, the ‘R d Summary §H

Thear Restated Summary Statements have been prepared by the management for the purpose aof inclusion in the Draft Red Herring Fraspectus
(‘DRHP] to be filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Baard of India (*SEBI} in connection with the propesed initial public offering ni]
eyuity shares of face value of Rs 10 each of the Campany (the “Qffer’), in terms of the requirements ol

{a)Section 26 of Part | of Chapter I of the Companits Act, 2013 (the “Act’);

(ofThe Securities and Exchange Board of India [Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, issued by the Securitics nmd
Excharnge Board of Indiu ('SEBI'} as amended, from time to time in pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992; and

{¢IThe Guidance Nole on Reports in Company Prosp Revised 2019) issued by the Inslituie of Chartered Accountants of (ndia (ICAI i«
amendrd {the “Guidance Note”|

The Restated Summary Statements has been compiled from:

« Audited Interim Financial Statements of the Company as at and foc the nine months period ended September 30, 2025 prepared in accordance with
Irdlian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (referred to as “Ind AS 34" as prescribed under Secton 133 of the Act read with
Compapics (Indion Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended from tme to time) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India
alang, with the presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule JII to the Companies Act, 20 13 (Ind As compliant Schedule 11) as applicable which
tiave been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting keid on February 05, 2026.

= Audited 3 s of the Company as at and for the year ended December 31, 2024, Decemnber 31, 2023 and December 31, 20022
prepared in accordance with [ndian Accounting Standards {Ind-AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 fas)
amended from time to time] and ather accaunting principles gencrally accepted in India, along with (he presentation requirements of Divisien 11 aff
Schedule 111 to the Cempanics Act, 2013, {Ind-AS compli Fedule 1), as licable which was approved by the Board of Directors at their meeling|
neld an April 16, 2023, April 02, 202+ and April 05, 2023 respectively

Higtarical cost convention

The at Y have been prepured on the historical cost and accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that are|
munnused at fair values at the end of cach reparting period (refer accounting palicy regarding financial instruments). All amounts disclosed in thc
Restatedt Summary Statements and notes have been rounded off 1a the acarest Million Indian Rupeces with two decimal places, unless otlicraisc
atnted

Carrent/Ron-current cleasification

The Campany segregites aseets and liabilities into cusrent and asp-cuszent categories for presentation in the balunce sheet after considering =
nurmal epesating cvile and other edteria sct out in Ind AS L. “Pr ion of Fi ial " For this purpese, current assets and laki
include the current portion of non-current assets and liabilities respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.
Thw operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents The Company las
identitied period up to twelve months as its operating cycle

Usr of Estimates

The preparation of the restated summary statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India requires the management 0|
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of asscts and liabilitivs as of the Balance Sheet date and reported amount of inrome)

and expenses for the year and disclosure of ing lities as of the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in these raatated
sutnmars statements are based on management’s cvaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the restated sumimary
ataterments. Actual results could differ from these esti Appropriate ch in estimares are made as b aware of in|

ctreumsiances surraunding the estimates. Changes in cstimutes are reflected in the restated summary statements in the periad in which changes arz
made and, if material, their effeets are disclosed in the noles ta the restated summary statements
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2.4

(b

(e)

|Significant estimates and judgments
The areas involving significant estimates and judgments are:

(i) Defined benefit obligation: -
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 37.

(ii) Useful life and Residual Value of PPE - Refer note 2.4 (c)

(i) Warranty provision (Refer note 17A and note 17B)
The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required by law. These assurance-type
warranties are accounted for under Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Company also incurs for Warranty
expenses that are beyond the warranty period as a goodwill gesture to the customers on case to case basis

(iv) Expected credit loss:
The company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit).The provision matrix is initially based on the company'’s historical observed default rates as follows:

Balances not due are provided at 0.04% and those amounts overdue by 1-90 days are provided at 0.29%. Amounts overdue by 91-180 days are
provided at 8.47%, 181-270 days at 32.71%, 271-360 days at 88.32%, and more than 360 days at 100%.

The company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The company’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
company's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 40.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and|
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost represent expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of assets including related taxes, duties,|
freight, insurance and cost of installation and is net of Cenvat and VAT/GST credits.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future|
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any|
component accounted for as separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the|
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Gains or losses arising on derecognition of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Computer software are capitalized when|
it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Capitalisation cost include license fees.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the,
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible asset is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

D fatiGitand =

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. assessed based on technical evaluation which are lower than those specified by Schedule 11 to the Act. in order to reflect the actual usage of the|
assets. Technical evaluation takes into account the estimated usage, past history of replacement, service support, availability of spares, anticipated
technological changes, etc.

The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expectations differ from previous
estimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

CHENNA}
iNDl1A
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The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows :

Useful life followed by the Useful life prescribed

Assets Company under Schedule II of
(in years) the Act (in years)
Buildings 30.00 30.00
Office equipment’s (including computers) 4.00 5.00
Furniture and fixtures 8.33 10.00
Motor vehicles 5.00 8.00
Plant and machinery
Tools and patterns 4.00 7.50
Testing instruments 6.45 7.50
Others 10.00 15.00

Cost of computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years based on their estimated useful of the asset.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the leasehold period or useful life estimated by the management, whichever is lesser.

Impairment of Assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible and intangible) may be impaired. If any]
such indication exists. an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the|
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets|
or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit (CGU). Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to|
the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or CGU's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value ol
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also|
done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounting periods mayj
no longer exist or may have decreased.

Foreign Currency Translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the restated summary statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the|
Company operates (‘the functional currency). i.e. in Indian rupee (Rs.) and all values are rounded off to nearest millions and decimals thereol

except where otherwise indicated.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Initial Recognition
All foreign currency transactions are recorded in functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.

Subsequent Recognition
As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using|

the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the closing exchange rates. Exchange differences arising out of
actual payment/realisation and from the year end restatement are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Forward contracts
Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding at the year-end on account of firm commitment / highly probable forecast transactions are|

marked to market and the gains/losses, if any. are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Hedging activities and derivatives
The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are|
foreign currency risk. commodity price risk, and interest rate risk. The Company’s risk management strategy and how it is applied to manage risk

are explained in Note 40

Inventories
Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value.

The cost of raw materials is determined using moving average price.
The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress comprises of raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs|
necessary to make the sale. Inventories are written-down for obsolete/slow-moving/non-moving items, wherever necessary.
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2.8

Financial instruments

Financial assets

()

(i)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
b. Those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flow.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in|
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend
on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value|
through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those asset changes.

Measurements
Initial Recognition:

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a signi 1t ing ¢ 1t or for which the Company has applied the|
practical expedient arc measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.11 Revenue
from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are|
‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is|
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or|
loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the|
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement:
a. Debt Instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments. The instruments that
do not meet the criteria for classification as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI will be measured at FVTPL.

Amortized Cost:

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortized cost. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective|
interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to impairment as per the accounting policy applicable to ‘Impairment of financial assets.” Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR|
amortisation is included in other income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses:

A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. For debt instruments,
at fair value through OCI, interest income. foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss]
and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.
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(1)

(iv)

)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Financial liabilities

b. Equity instruments:

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value
through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation for the issuer and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity investment which are held for trading and contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on such equity investments are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement o
profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not|

subject to impairment assessment.

c. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets in this category are those that are held for trading and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or|
are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109 i.e. they do not meet the criteria for classification as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI. Ma 1t only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition, if the designation eliminates, or|
significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses]
on them on a different basis. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. For the Company. this category includes
derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. The
Company has not designated any financial assets at FVTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in thej
statement of profit and loss.

Interest earned on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium
and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is
recorded using the contractual interest rate. Dividend income on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as|
other income when the right of payment has been established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI debt
instruments. Impairment is considered when there is significant increase in credit risk. Note 40 details how the Company determines whether]
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLS|
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the|
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses}
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments. which requires expected
credit losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is de-recognized only when:

a) The Company’s contractual right to the cash flow expires or

b) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset.

Initial ition and

Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings. payables,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables. net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include deposits, loans & borrowings, trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within
one year from the Balance Sheet date. the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Off: of fi ial inst

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

CHENNALI
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2.9 |Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before|
payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivables are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost|
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Also refer accounting policies 2.8(iii) for impairment of financial assets.

2.10 [Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financiall
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts;
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.11 |Revenue from contract with customer
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects|
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is|
the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.
Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods or ex-works depending on the contractual terms.
Volume rebates
The Company provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds af
threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value
method for contracts with more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily|
driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of
variable consideration and recognizes a refund liability for the expected future rebates.
Significant financing component
Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects. at contract inception, that the period between|
the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.
Contract balances
Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration that is conditional.
Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of]
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer. a contract
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the|
Company performs under the contract

2.12 |Gov Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company]
will comply with all attached conditions.

When the grant relates to an asset. it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset

Government grants relating to income are recognized in the profit or loss. as necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to)
compensate.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss)
over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate,
the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and
the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently,

measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.
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Annexure V - Summary of material ng policies and 1 ory notes forming part of d y of St: of Assets and
Liabilities
2.13 |R: and other employee b fi

a. |Short-term

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are|
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in|
the balance sheet.

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive|
obligation.

Post employment

Post employment benefits comprise of Provident fund and Gratuity which are accounted for as follows:

(i) Provident fund
Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such|
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions

made on a monthly basis.

(i) Gratuity
The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit]
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by Actuaries|
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on the Government Bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan|
assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in|
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income (net of tax). They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in|
equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in
profit or loss as past service cost.

Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short-
term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional
amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year are treated as other
long-term employee benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.
Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

Current and Deferred Tax
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred taxes.
Provision for current tax is computed at the applicable tax rate in accordance with the Income tax Act, 1961. Management periodically evaluates]

positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where|
apprapriate on the basis of amounts expected ta be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying]
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the|
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred|
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to|
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or|
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each|
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Liabil

2.15

(i)

(i)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings|
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use|
or sale. are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing]|
costs are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past events, it is probable that an outflow o
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Provisions arc measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of]
the reporting period, The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value|
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expenses.

Provision for product warranty cover the estimated liability to repair or replace products still under warranty on the Balance Sheet date and is|
determined by applying percentage of eligible sales based on management's best estimate considering the historical experience levels of repairs and
replacement. Product warranty is generally extended for a period of 12 months from the date of sale.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events. the existence of which will be confirmed only by the|
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises]
from past events but is not recognized because (a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle|
the obligation; or (b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are recognized as contingent liability. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence and other required disclosures in notes to the financial statements, unless the|
possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. Further, provision is created in the books of accounts in respect of matters where management has
concluded the Company’s liability to be probable.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent Assets are not recognized, however, disclosed in restated summary statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable. However,
when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and the Company recognize such assets.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average|
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue. bonus element in a rights]
issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without aj
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted|
average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Leases:
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of Use Assets:

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before|
the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over lease period or useful life
estimated by the management, whichever is lesser as follows:

Asset Description Useful Lives (Years)
Building 2-5
Leasehold land 95

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.20

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the|
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the|
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the|
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. [n addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is al
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate|
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of buildings and others (i.e., those leases that have a lease|
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short term leases are recognized
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases.
Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating]
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rentall
income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Dividend

Final dividend distributed to equity shareholders is recognised in the period in which it is approved by the members of the company in the Annual
General Meeting, Interim Dividend is recognised when approved by the Board of Directors at the board meeting. Dividend distributed (including
interim dividend) is recognised in the statement of changes in equity.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place

either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability. or
lii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability.
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the restated summary statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the restated summary statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, mention a description of the valuation
pracesses used by the entity (including, for example, how an entity decides its valuation policies and procedures and analyses changes in fair value
measurements from period to period).

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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2.22 |Non-current assets held for sale and Discontinued operations

y of of Assets and

The company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
rather than through continuing use.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal group), excluding finance costs and income tax

expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset or disposal group is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale/ distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale and the sale expected within one
year from the date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the exchange has commercial
substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups). its sale is highly probable; and it
will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The company treats sale of the asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

» The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

» An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

» The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value,

» The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. and

» Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be
withdrawn.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible are not depreciated, or amortised assets once classified as held for sale.
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the balance sheet.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss before tax from
discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 32. All other notes to the restated summary statements mainly include amounts for continuing operations,

unless otherwise mentioned.

2.23 |New and amended standards

(i)Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless
of the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features; a few scope
exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

- A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

« A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the Company’s restated summary statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the
nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117.

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to
ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

'The amendment does not have a material impact on the Company’s restated summary statements.

2.24 |Standards notified but not yet effective
The new and amended standards that are notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s restated summary statements are disclosed below. The Company will adopt these new and amended standards, when they become

effective.

(i)Lack of h bility - A d ts to Ind AS 21

Amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable
and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking, The amendments also require disclosure of information that
enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to
affect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s restated summary statements.
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(i)Cl fi of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants - Amendments to Ind AS 1

Amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments clarify:

«What is meant by a right to defer settlement

+That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

«That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

«That only if an cmbedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification

In addition, a requirement has been introduced to require disclosure when a liability arising from a loan agreement is classified as non-current and
the entity’s right to defer settlement is contingent on compliance with future covenants within twelve months.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025 and must be applied retrospectively. The Company is
currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current practice and whether existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.

(iii Finance A ts - A d s to Ind AS 7 and Ind AS 107

Amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures clarify the characteristics of supplier finance
arrangements and require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended to assist users of
financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s restated summary statements.

(iv)Inter Tax Pillar Two Model Rules - Amendments to Ind AS 12

Amendments to Ind AS 12 Income Taxes in response to the OECD’s BEPS Pillar Two rules include:

A mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two
model rules; and

«Disclosure requirements for affected entities to help users of the financial statements better understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes arising from that legislation, particularly before its effective date.
The mandatory temporary exception — the use of which is required to be disclosed - applies immediately. The remaining disclosure requirements apply
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025, but not for any interim periods ending on or before 31 March 2026.

The dments are not exp d to have a material impact on the Company'’s restated summary statements.

Consequential amendments to other Ind ASs have also been made which are not expected to have any material impact on the Company'’s restated

summary statements.
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3.6 Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule
As at September 30, 2023

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Project in progress Leas than More than Total
1-2 years | 2-3 years
1year 3 years
froject i progiess 147 03 8.25 155 28
Trojet temporanly suspended % N
| Total 147.03 8.25 - - 155.28 %
As at 31st December 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Project in progress Less than More than| Tatal
1-2 years | 2-3 years
1year 3 years
Troect i progiess Tou o1 ST . 11221
Troject tenporarly suspernded 5 -
| Total 106.54 3.67 - - 112.21
As at 31st December 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Project in progress Less than More than| =
1-2 years | 2-3 years
1 year 3 years
T o 0257
e pornh sspended
202.57 - - -

As at 31st December 2022

‘Amount in CWIP for a period of

Total
Project in progress Less than More than -
12 years | 23 years
1 year 3 yeurs
Troetm prosss IR [ORT)
Troert ooy susperded 5
[Total 5639 g 3 = 96.35

3.7 Intangible Asset under Development (IAUD) Ageing Schedule
As at September 30, 202

Amount in TAUD for a period of

Lessthan [y o oo | 2.3 years | MOTC 20 Total

1year 3 years
Tropert  progress 1173 1173
Trowect tenporinih suspended B
Total 1173 - - s 1173
As at December 31,2024
“Amount in TAUD for & period of
Total
Lessthan| oo | oo More than °
1year 2 TR |3 years
Trowect i progess T [ED
Trojet teniporinly suspended s
Total 5.46 - - - 9.46
As at December 31, 2023
Amount In TAUD for a period of
Lossthan | oo o o cars | More than Tatal
1year Hg e b 3 years
Troject m progess z
Troect tenporanly suspended - -
Total z S : £ 2
As at December 31, 2022
Amount In TAUD for a period of
Total
Lessthan| oo |0 o s enrs | MOFS than Bt
1year e T 3 years
Troent in progress =
Troject temporaih sispended - = =
Total 2 5 3 F s
Tt ittt e rvnp st 8 vesdue o s exceestend 1 st cormparesh o sangunal plan dunng the peread endead Septemlxs 20, 2025 sl ke the venrs erdet Dagvinbes 11, 2024, Deawinber 11, 2023 il Drcvanbes A1, 2022
velation 1o Capital-Workeim Progiess and Intangable Assets under Dew lopment Vagedhaldi
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Non-current

As at

Asat
December 31, 2024

Asat
December 31, 2023

Asat

December 31, 2022

30, 2025

4 Investments at FVTPL

Investment 1n equity instruments - Quoted
37,500 (December 31, 2024, 2023, 2022 - 37,500) equity shares of

Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Tulsyan NEC Limited 113 113 113 113
Total 1.13 1.13 1.13 1.13
Aggregate amount of Quoted mvestments 1.13 1.13 1.13 1.13
Aggregate amount of impawrment in the value of investments
4.1 These equity shares are valued at a price (represents the fair value) as determined the share purchase agreement entered with Tulsyan NEC Limited
Non-current
As at Asat Asat Asat
September 30, 2025 _ December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
5A Loans (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to related party # ( also refer Note 38) 92,40 92.40
92.40 92.40 - -
Current
As at Asat As at As at
September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
5B Loans (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to related party # ( also refer Note 38) 36.06 126.11
36.06 126.11 - 5
Total (Current and Non-current) 128.46 218.51 x 5
# The Company has provided loan to Bonfiglioli Technology Space Private Limited
(1) amounting to Rs 115.50 (December 31, 2024 - Rs 115.50; December 31, 2023 - Nil; December 31, 2022 - Nil) relating to sale of discontinued operations, which is
repayable in 5 equal annual instalments at an interest rate of 8.25% p.a and
(11) cash pooling facihity amounting to Rs 12.96 (December 31, 2024- Rs. 103.01; December 31, 2023 - Nil; December 31, 2022 - Nil) at an nterest rate of 8.25%,
repayable within a year.
Non-current
As at Asat Asat Asat
September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
ga Other financlal assets (at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Securnty deposits 59.63 55.56 54.59 40.73
Bank deposits with remaiming maturity more than 12 months 150.00
Total 59.63 55.56 54.59 190.73
Current
As at As at Asat As at
September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
6B Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good) - (at amortised cost)
Secunty deposits 2.71 3.28 7.64 21.41
Refund recewable 2.76 2.25 8.88
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 3.80 1.74 53.71 46.99
Bank deposits with remaining matunty less than 12 months (also 077
refer note 12.1)
Other receivables from related party (Refer Note 38) ** 53.20 140.63
Expenses recoverable from holding company* (Refer Note 38) 16.52
Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts 424
Total 79.76 147.87 65.59 77.28
* represents amount recoverable from helding company of Rs.16.52 (December 31, 202+4: Nil; December 31, 2023: Nil; December 31, 2022: Nil) which has been incurred
by the Company towards proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO) of the equity shares held by the selling shareholders (offer for sale)
*+ Relates to Secondary Adjustment as per Transfer pricing (Refer Note 23)
Non-current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
7A Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 88.13 74.39 71.05 70.02
Prepaid expenses - 0.79 0.79
Total 88.13 74.39 71.84 70.81
Current
Asat As at Asat As at
September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
7B Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advances to suppliers 44.22 26.29 37.97 34.47
Advance to employees 14.84 2.43 3.29 3.17
Prepaid expenses 37.13 39.88 19.64 14.89
Balances with Government Authorities:
Customs and excise 0.02 0.01 0.01
Goods and services tax (GST) 197.62 137.32 343.66 171.15
- Export entitlements 30.28 16.49 18.59 28.60
Rebate claim recewable from GST authorities 193.51 129.13 20.20 73.49
Total other current assets 517.60 351.56 443.36 325.78
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8 Deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

As at As at As at As at
p 30, D ber 31 ber 31, ber 31,
2025 2024 2023 2022
Deferred tax assets
Exp 11 ble for tax on payment basis 29.95 26.62 37.39 21.20
Expense on which tax is not deducted 100.66 14.29 21.35 5.66
Provision for doubtful debts & product warranty 62.28 62.38 54.80 50.40
Difference between bou!( and tax wx:nlv:n c?own value of depreciable 62.89 57.21 61.20 64.60
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Right of Use (9.32) (15.20) (23.99) 14.26
Lease liabilities 9.55 16.50 24.33 (13.82)
Total deferred tax assets 256.01 161.80 175.08 142.30J
Movement in deferred tax assets
S Property,
Expenses Provision for
allowable for ~ iPoUS® 9% qoubtful debts plantand . Rightof Lease s
tax on payment et S & product L5 Use liabilities
Hasis ¥y assets

At January 1, 2022 20.88 1.22 56.30 60.00 2.10 - 140.50
(Charged)/credited:

to profit or loss 5.80 4.44 (5.90) 4.60 12.16 (13.82) 7.28

to other comprehensive income (5.48) - - - (5.48)
At December 31, 2022 21.20 5.66 50.40 64.60 14.26 (13.82) 142.30
(Charged)/credited:

to profit or loss 2.72 15.69 4.40 (3.40) (38.25) 38.15 19.31
- to other comprehensive income 13.47 = < ~ 13.47
At December 31, 2023 37.39 21.35 54.80 61.20 (23.99) 24.33  175.08
(Charged)/credited:
- to profit or loss (13.02) (7.06) 7.58 (3.99) 8.79 (7.83) (15.53)
- to other comprehensive income 2.25 - = = - = 2.25
At December 31, 2024 26.62 14.29 62.38 57.21 (15.20) 16.50  161.80
(Charged)/credited:

to profit or loss 2.52 86.37 (0.10) 5.68 5.88 (6.95) 93.40
- to other comprehensive income 0.81 - = - = 2 0.81
At September 30, 2025 29.95 100.66 62.28 62.89 (9.32) 9.55 256.01
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As at As at As at As at

September 30, 2025

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

9 Inventories (at the lower of cost and Net realisable value)

Raw materials and components
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Total Inventories at the lower of cost and Net realisable value

1,997.84
491.52
867.36

3,356.72

9.1 Includes goods-in-transit amounting to INR 411.23 ( (31 December 2024: INR 340.67 , 3

expense for inventories carried at net realisable value

During the nine month period ended 30 September 2025, INR 0.98 ((31 December 2024:

9.3 Inventories: Refer note 15.1 for details on encumbrances on inventories

10 Trade receivables

1,643.48
594.47
869.05

~3,107.00_

1,809.02
779.66
726.92

3,315.60

—_— O e

1 December 2023: INR 364.41 , 31 December 2022: INR 438.30 )

1,390.70
603.20
634.52

2,628.42

INR 0.95 , 31 December 2023: INR 0.54 , 31 December 2022: INR 1.05 ) was recognised as an

Trade receivables from related parties (Refer note 38) 1.057.73 865.21 1.057.41 1,078.55
Trade receivables from third parties 3,729.53 3.230.41 3,045.93 2.688.85
Total 4,787.26 4,095.62 4,103.34 3,767.40
Break up of trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - Secured * 544.60 516.24 128.73 196.55

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 4,242.66 3,579.38 3,974.61 3,570.85

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 11.35 15.32 14.70 18.11

Trade receivables - credit impaired 38.08 44.39 2391 2491

4,836.69 4,155.33 4,141.95 3,810.42

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (49.43) (59.71) (38.61) (43.02)

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (11.35) (15.32) (14.70) (18.11)

Trade receivables - credit impaired (38.08) (44.39) (23.91) (24.91)

Total 4,787.26 4,095.62 4,103.34 3,767.40

10.1 Movement in provision of Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Amount as at the beginning of the period/year (59.71) (38.61) (43.02) (64.00)

Add: (Provision) / reversal made during the period/year 9.50 (23.29) 3.95 (1.09)

Less: bad debts written off 0.78 2.14 0.46 22.07
Amount as at the end of the period/year (49.43) (59.71) (38.61) (43.02)

Refer note 15.1 for details of encumbrance on trade receivables, Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 120 days. For terms

10-2  oated party receivables/ payables, refer Note 38

* The receivables are secured against letter of credit.

and conditions relating to

Trade bles ageing schedul
As at 30th Septemeber 2025
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
More
Not due
LESSEhEx | 6 moutis 1-2 years 2-3 years than 3 Total
6 months -1 year
years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 4.300.89 485.42 0.94 0.01 = 2 4.787.26
(i) l‘.ndlspu\ed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in . 8.43 2.56 0.36 ~ ~ 11.35
credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - & - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit ~ R B . R } R
risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - = 0.05 22.52 0.42 15.09 38.08
Total 4,300.89 493.85 3.55 22.89 0.42 15.09 4,836.69
As at 31st December 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than | 6 months More
1-2 years 2-3 years than 3 Total
6 months -1 year
years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 3.630.26 464.40 0.96 - - - 4,095.62
(i) ljnx:}xsputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in _ 12.44 2.88 _ B _ 15.32
credit risk
(ili) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good s - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit R R R B ~ R R
risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 15.94 5.45 1.10 0.01 21.89 44.39
Total 3,630.26 492.78 9.29 1.10 0.01 21.89 4,155.33
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As at 31st December 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due More
Lessthjd | pmanthy 1-2 years 2-3 years than 3 Total
6 months -1 year
years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 3.878.66 223.00 1.68 - - - 4,103.34
T = ——= e = -
(ii) l.am‘!.l:putcd Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in . 8.43 5.09 1.08 0.10 ~ 14.70
credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired = - s = - 3 -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit _ ~ R ~ . ~ B
risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired n 091 1.10 0.01 2.36 19.53 23.91
Total 3,878.66 232.34 7:87 1.09 2.46 19.53 4,141.95
As at 31st December 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due | 1, More
e e 1-2 years 2-3 years than 3 Total
6 months -1 year
years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 3.298.83 467.86 0.71 - - - 3.767.40
TR = = R — P -
(i1) l..m?lsputcd Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in R 15.03 0.43 0.48 R 0.17 18.11
credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - = - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit B ~ R _ _ _ .
risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - 5.38 7.89 11.64 2491
Total 3,298.83 482.89 3.14 5.86 7.89 11.81 3,810.42
As at As at As at As at

September 30, 2025

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

11

12

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
- Cash on hand
- Cheque on hand
Balances with banks
- On current accounts
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Total

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Current

Fixed deposits with remaining maturity less than three months

Margin money deposits with original maturity period of more than three

months but maturing within 12 months (refer note 12.1)

Bank deposits with more than 3 months and less than 12 months

maturity
Total

12.1 Held as lien by bank against bank guarantees.

0.04

366.19
1.050.00

250.00

1,416.23

250.00

0.08

456.59
990.00

1,446.67

0.94

0.94

0.05
2.73

402.54
500.00

905.32

1.150.00
0.12
550.00

1,700.12

0.05
7.60

429.06
650.00

1,086.71

180.00
0.42
1,500.00

1,680.42
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Bonfiglioli Transmissions Limited (Formerly known as Bonfiglioll Transmissions Private Limited)

As at December 31,
2024

As at December 31,

As at December 31,

As at September 30,
2025 2023 2022
13 Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
132,000,000 {September 30, 2025 - 132,000,000, December 31, 202+
132,000,000, December 31, 2023 - 132,000,000, December 31, 2022 1.320.00 1,320 00 1,320 00 1,320 00
132,000.000] equity shares of Rs 10 each
Iasued, subscribed and fully paid up
125,330,556 (December 31, 2024 - 125,330,556, December 31, 2023
131,122,994, December 31, 2022  131.,122,994) equits shares of 1.253.31 1,311.23 131123 1.311.23
Rs 10 each
Less: Shares Bought Back (57.92)
1.253.31 1.253.31 1.311.23 1,311.23
As at September 30, 2025 As at December 31, 2024 As at December 31, 2023 As at December 31, 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
() Reconcillation of number of equity shares

Balance as at the beginning of the
period /1y ear 125,330,556 1,253.31 131,122,994 1,311.23 131,122,994 1.311.23 131,122,994 131123
Shares Bought Back (5.792.438) (57.92)
Balance as at the end of the period/year 125,330,556 1.253.31 125,330,556 1,253.31 131,122,994 1,311.23 131,122,994 1,311.23

(b)  Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

proportion to their shareholding,

(c)  Details of equity shares held by holding company and its nominees

Equity shares held by Bonfiglioli S.p a, Ital\,

25,330,556
the holding company, and its nominees 12533055

As at September 30, 2025

1,253 31

Equity shares held by Bonfiglioli S.pa, Italy. Sp— 1,263.51
the holding company, and its nominees
4 of shares held 100%

30,2025, the

(e) In the period of five years P

() _Details of Shareholding by promoters

the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend  In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after

As at December 31, 2024

(d) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

125,330,556 1.253.31
125,330,556 1,253 .31
100°%

The Compam has ane class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share Each shareholder is eligible for ane vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in

As at December 31, 2023

127,941,176 1,279 41
127,941,176 1,279.41
98%

Shares held by promoters as at September 30, 2025

8. No

Promoter name

No. of Shares at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares at

Change during the
period

the end of the
period

% Change during

vof total shares it pedivd

Bonfiglioli S p.a, Italy &
s

125,330,556

125,330,556

100.00% 0.00%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year December 31, 2024

8. No Promoter name

No. of Shares at the
beginning of the year

Change during the | No. of Shares at
year the end of the year

% Change during

vof total shares theyear

Bonfigloli S p a, Italy &
its nominees

127,941,176

(2,610,620) 125,330,556

2.43%

100 00%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year December 31, 2023

S. No Promoter name

No. of Shares at the
beginning of the year

Change during the | No. of Shares at
year the end of the year

% Change during

oof total shares the year

Bonfiglioli S.p.a, Italy &
its nominees

127.941,176

127,941,176

97.57% 0.00%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year December 31, 2022

8. No Promoter name

No. of Shares at the
beginning of the year

Change during the | No. of Shares at
year the end of the year

% Change during

*s0f total shares the year

Bonfiglioli S.p.a, Ital &
its nominees

127,941,176

127,941,176

0.00%

13.1 Equity shares are not hsted in am stock exchange

ofall § mounts, in

As at December 31, 2022

127,941,176 1,279.41
127,941,176 1,279 41
98%

number of equity shares bought back by the Company was 5,792,438 of face value of Rs. 10 each.
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as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited)

As at
September 30, 2025

As at
December 31, 2024

As at
December 31, 2023

As at
December 31, 2022

14

14.1
(a)

(b)

()

14.2

Other equity

Reserves and surplus
(i) Securities premium (refer note 14.1 (a))
(ii) Retained earnings (refer note 14.1 (b))
(iii) Capital Redemption Reserve (refer note 14.1 (c))

Total

Reserves and surplus

Securities premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Less: Utilized against Buyback of Shares
Balance as at the end of the period/year

Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Less: Dividend paid to the Shareholders

Add: Profit for the period/year

Less: Utilized against Buyback of Shares

Less: Tax on buyback of shares

Less: Transferred to Capital Redemption reserve

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations, net of tax for
the period/year

Balance as at the end of the period/year

Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add : Transferred from Retained earnings
Balance as at the end of the period/year

Total

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of share

of the Companies Act. 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general rese;

‘ « 300.32 309.32
7,041.73 7,219.69 6,432.80 5,633.19
57.92 57.92 - =
7,999.65 7,277.61 6,742.12 5,942.51
- 309.32 300.32 300.32
- (309.32) . 2
- F 309.32 309.32
7,219.69 6,432.80 5,633.19 5,541.40
(927.45) (689.30) (655.60) (1,639.00)
1,651.89 1,946.89 1,495.25 1,714.49
. (352.75)
e (53.33)
- (57.92) 5
(2.40) (6.70) (40.04) 16.30
7,941.73 7,219.69 6,432.80 5,633.19
57.92 s r -
. 57.92 2 -
57.92 57.92 . -
7,999.65 7,277.61 6,742.12 5,942.51

earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Redemption Reserve

s. The reserve can be utilized only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions

rve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained

The Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buy-back of equity shares from its retained earnings. The amount in Capital Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount

of the equity shares bought back. The Company can utilize the same for the purpose of issue of fully paid-up bonus shares to its members.

Dividend Distribution made

Dividends on equity shares declared and paid

Final dividend for the period ended on September 30, 2025 - Nil (Year
ended December 31, 2024 - Nil, December 31, 2023 - Rs. 5 per share,
December 31, 2022 - Nil)

Interim dividend for the period ended on September 30, 2025 - Rs. 7.40
per share (Year ended December 31, 2024 - Rs. 5.50 per share, December
31, 2023 - Nil, December 31, 2022 - 12.50 per share)

Total

As at
September 30, 2025

927.45

As at
December 31, 2024

689.30

As at
December 31, 2023

As at
December 31, 2022

1,639.00

927.45

689.30

655.60

1,639.00
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Current
As at As at As at As at

September 30, 2025

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

15 Borrowings (at amortised cost)
Secured - From banks
Packing credit (refer note 15.1)) - - 1,107.86 1,437.44
= - 1,107.86 1,437.44
15.1 The Company had taken packing credit loans from banks with interest rates ranging from 6.15% to 6.63% p.a. These facilities are repayable within 120 - 150 days and are secured on
a pari-passu basis by a first charge by way of hypothecation of all existing and future current assets and by a second charge on the Company's movable Property, plant and equipment,
both present and future. The loan does not carry any debt covenant. The Company has not defaulted on any borrowings.
15.2 The quarterly returns / statements filed with the bank are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.
Non-current
As at As at As at As at
September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
16A Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Employee benefits payable 12.10 1.82 20.31 11.04
Total 12.10 1.82 20.31 11.04
Current
As at As at As at As at
September 30, 2025 D ber 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
16B Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - - 1.77 1.96
Other interest accrued and due = = - 0.29
Capital creditors
- mfal outstafxdmg dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 13.64 41.08 74.54 31.19
(Refer note 35)
- total uutstamlmg, dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 30.27 109.45 124.13 62.51
and small enterprises
Employee benefits payable 49.36 93.78 75.41 96.67
Interim dividend payable to Parent company (Refer note 38) - 191.76 - -
Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts 5.25 11.68 - 23.41
Total 108.52 447.75 275.85 216.03
Non-current
As at As at As at As at
September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
17A Provisions

Provision for employee benefits:

Compensated absences (Refer note 37)
Other provisions:

Provision for product warranty (Refer note 17.1)
Total

66.03 57.30 62.10 45.71
48.37 49.05 45.49 44.33
114.40 106.35 107.59 90.04
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September 30, 2025

Bonfiglioli T Limited (F ly known as Bonfiglioli T: Private Limited)
Annexure VI - Notes to d y
CIN: U29309TN1998PLC040717
(All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Current
As at As at As at As at

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

17B Provisions
Provision for employee benefits:

Compensated absences (Refer note 37)
Gratuity (Refer note 37)
Other provisions:
Provision for product warranty (Refer note 17.1)
Provision for litigation (Refer note 17.2)
Total

rent)

17.1 M t in provision for p (

Amount as at the beginning of the year

Add: Provision created during the period/year
Less: Claims settled during the period/year
Amount as at the end of the period/year

17.2 M t of p;
Amount as at the beginning of the year
Less: Provision used against payment during the period/year

Amount as at the end of the period/year

under the respective Acts/ Regulations.

12.58 9.03 9.40 7.80
19.66 24.66 66.73 21.02
149.66 139.09 133.56 113.07
19.68 33.76 104.65 68.80
201.58 206.54 314.34 210.69
188.14 179.10 157.40 150.80
80.42 81.48 100.41 74.30
(70.53) (72.44) (78.76) (67.70)
198.03 188.14 179.05 157.40

Add: Provision made/ (reversal) during the period/year (Income tax)

The above provision represents estimate made for probable liabilities/ claims relating to warranty. The outflow is dependent on the receipt of claims during the period of warranty.

33.76 104.65 68.80 79.66

1.52 (64.88) 38.17 5.70
(15.60) (6.01) (2.32) (16.56)
19.68 33.76 104.65 68.80

The Company has recorded provisions for the liabilities arising on account of pending assessment proceedings with various Government authorities without prejudice to its legal right

Non-current

As at
September 30, 2025

As at As at As at
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

18A Lease Liabilities

September 30, 2025

Lease liabilities (refer note 33) 5.43 28.09 60.10 19.56
Total 5.43 28.09 60.10 19.56
Current
As at As at As at As at

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

18B Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities (refer note 33)

Total

37.48 36.56 37.09

37.48 36.56 37.09
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Bonfiglioli Transmissions Limited (Formerly known as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited)
Annexure VI - Notes to Restated Summary Statements

CIN: U29309TN1998PLC040717

(All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Non-current
As at As at As at As at
September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

19A Income Tax Assets (net)

Opening balance 492 26.93 35.53 4.90
Refund reversed dunng the period/year = (22.01) (8.60) 30.63
Closing balance 4.92 4.92 26.93 35.53
Current
As at As at As at As at

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

19B Income Tax Asscts/(Liabilities) (net)

Opening balance 82.30 92.53 70.96 96.50

Refund receivable dunng the year - 19.51 -

Refund received during the period/year (19.81)

Taxes paid for previous years 10.15

Less: Provision for current tax (66+4.02) (577.64) (561.15) (592.49)

Advance income tax and tax deducted at source 424.72 547.90 582.72 566.95

Closing balance (166.36) 82.30 92.53 70.96
20 Trade payables

Current

Total outstanding dues o{ micro and small 533.01 382.72 588.60 481.76

enterprises (Refer note 35)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other 3,265.68 2,710.88 3,227.00 2,335.33

than micro and small enterprises

Total 3,798.69 3,093.60 3,815.60 2,817.09

Acceptances = = 7.80 108.43

Payables to others 2,417.61 2,079.77 2,395.91 1,594.14

Payables to related parties (Refer note 38) 1,381.08 1,013.83 1,411.89 1,114.52

Total 3,798.69 3,093.60 3,815.60 2,817.09

Trade Payables ageing schedule
As at September 30, 2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed dues - MSME 450.71 70.48 = 1.75 10.07 533.01
(1)) Undisputed - Others 2,481.57 782.62 0.10 0.02 1.37 3,265.68
(i) Disputed dues - MSME E . - < =
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 2,932.28 853.10 0.10 1.77 11.44 3,798.69

As at December 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed dues - MSME 348.75 22.15 = 1.75 10.07 382.72
(1) Undisputed - Others 2,109.34 599.54 0.67 0.32 1.01 2,710.88
(1) Disputed dues - MSME - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - . , ,
Total 2,458.09 621.69 0.67 2.07 11.08 3,093.60

As at December 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed dues - MSME 523.44 53.10 1.84 0.05 10.17 588.60
(i) Undisputed - Others 2,557.71 667.80 0.42 0.06 1.01 3,227.00
(in) Disputed dues - MSME - - = = <
(iv)Disputed dues - Others = = S
Total 3,081.15 720.90 2.26 0.11 11.18 3,815.60

As at December 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Not due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(1) Undisputed dues - MSME 467.18 4.51 = = 10.07 481.76
(1)) Undisputed - Others 1,969.60 364.45 0.27 1.01 2,335.33
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME . , " "
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - . > 2 5

‘Total 2,436.78 368.96 0.27 - 11.08 2,817.09

20.1 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled between 30 to 120 days. For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables/ payables, refer Note 38

As at As at As at As at
30, 2025 D« ber 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

21 Other current liabilities

Statutory dues 58.61 191.00 135.81 101.09
Deferred Income (Export Promotion Capital Geods) 6.95 3.56
Total 65.56 194.56 135.81 101.09
22 Contract liabilities
Advances from customers 32.69 50.40 31.33 23.73
32.69 50.40 31.33 23.73
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Bonfiglioli Transmissions Limited (Formerly known as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited)
Annexure VI - Notes to d y

CIN: U29309TN1998PLCO40717

(All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
December 31, 2022

Year ended
December 31, 2023

Year ended
December 31, 2024

Nine months period ended
September 30, 2025

23 Revenue from operations

from with

Sale of products

Sale of goods 14,398.8+4 18,218.31 16,641.14 15,349.74
Sale of services

Income from services 49.09 41.95 49.78 12,44
Total from with 14,447.93 18,260.26 16,690.92 15,392.18
Other operating revenue

Scrap sales 62.20 89.18 78.21 87.62

Commission income 5.10 3.81 4.97

Income from government grant 9l.61 145.62 102:13 103.24

Others - Secondary Adjustment as per Transfer pricing = 140.63 -
Total other operating revenue 153.81 380.53 184.15 195.83
Total revenue from operations 14,601.74 18,640.79 16,875.07 15,588.01
Timing of Revenue recognition
Revenue recognised at a pont of time 14,398.84 18,218.31 16,641.14 15,349.74
Revenue recognised over a period of ime 49.09 41.95 49.78 42.44
Total 14,447.93 18,260.26 16,690.92 15,392.18
Summary of contract balances As at As at As at As at As at

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 January 01, 2022

Trade receivables (Refer note 10) 4,787.26 4,095.62 4,103.34 3,767.40 3,279.70
Advance from customers (Refer note 22| 32.69 50.40 31.33 23.73 35.50

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms of 30 to 120 days. For the mine-month period ended September 30, 2025 Rs 49.43 (December 31,

2024: Rs 59.71, December 31, 2023: Rs 38.61, December 31, 2022: Rs 43.02) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

of of r ised in the

statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price 14,447.93 18,260.26 16,690.92 15,392.18
Adjustments N .
from with as per d of
14,447.93 18,260.26 16,690.92 15,392.18

Profit and loss

Information about major customers

Revenue from one customer amounting to Rs 1,738.92 for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2025 constitute more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company

(December 31, 2024 - Rs. 1,801.73 (9.89%), December 31, 2023 - Rs. 1,248.68 (7.50%), December 31, 2022

Other income

Interest income

- Rs. 1,124.97 (7.33%))

On bank deposits 51.32 53.14 138.85 109.10
On other deposits 1.74 9.78 127 5.76
On loan given to related party (refer note 38) 7.83 2.09

Other non operating income
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 118 0.97 0.64 0.45
Allowance for doubtful debts no longer required written back 9.50 3.95
Gain on termination of lease 6.29
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 3.75 -

Total 77.80 69.73 144.71 115.31
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Annexure VI - Notes to R 24

CIN: U29309TN1998PLC040717
(All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Nine months period ended

Year ended

Year ended

Year ended

September 30, 2025 D ber 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
25 Cost of raw materials & components consumed
Inventory as at the beginning of the year 1,643.48 1,809.02 1,390.70 1,447.98
Add: Purchases (net) 9,461.80 11,719.98 11,530.84 9,864.32
Less: Inventory as at the end of the period/year 1,997.84 1,643.48 1,809.02 1,390.70
Total 9,107.44 11,885.52 11,112.52 9,921.60
26 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Stock as at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 869.05 726.92 634.52 730.30
Work-in-progress 594.47 779.66 603.20 506.83
Total (A) 1,463.52 1,506.58 1,237.72 1,237.13
Stock as at the end of the period/year
Finished goods 867.36 869.05 726.92 634.52
Work-in-progress 491.52 594.47 779.66 603.20
Total (B) 1,358.88 1,463.52 1,506.58 1,237.72
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in- progress
Finished goods 1.69 (142.13) (92.40) 95.78
Work-in-progress 102.95 185.19 (176.46) (96.37)
Total (A-B) 104.64 43.06 (268.86) (0.59)
27 Employee t &
Salaries, wages and bonus 651.76 849.37 784.66 677.21
Contribution to:
Provident fund (Defined contribution plan) (Refer note 37) 36.78 52.74 45.72 38.28
Gratuity (Defined benefit plan) (Refer note 37) 21.07 25.90 17.63 40.31
Staff welfare expenses 40.60 53.93 47.92 44.76
Total 750.21 981.94 895.93 800.56
27.1 The Cade on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the Code came into effect on 3 May 2023. However, the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. Based on a preliminary|
assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant.
28 Depreciation and amortisati T
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 309.49 405.65 311.45 296.58
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 3) 1.27 1.95 1.52 1.68
Depreciation of Right-of-use asset (Refer note 3) 30.38 42.67 50.10 39.49
Total 341.14 450.27 363.07 337.75
29 Finance costs
Interest on borrowings - 30.54 77.58 32.88
Interest on lease liabilities 2.78 6.94 5.33 5.98
Other borrowing costs 50.18 66.77 47.57 31.90
52.96 104.25 130.48 70.76

Total
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Bonfiglioli Tr:
Annexure VI - Notes to Restated Summary Statements

Limited (F

CIN: U29309TN1998PLC040717

(All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

ly known as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited)

Nine months period ended

September 30, 2025

Year ended
December 31, 2024

Year ended

Year ended

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

30

30.1

Other expenses

Consumption of stores, spare parts and tools
Sub-contracting charges

Power and fuel

Rent

Repairs and maintenance on Plant and machinery
Repairs and maintenance Buildings

Repairs and maintenance -Others

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance expenses

Contract labour charges

Payments to auditors (Refer note 30.1)
Directors' remuneration

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities (Refer

note 45)
Professional fees

Freight and handling charges (net)

Provision for product warranty

Royalty

Allowance for doubtful debts

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for sales tax disputes

Net loss on foreign currency transactions
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Payments to auditors

As auditor
Statutory audit fee
Reimbursement of expenses

Other Services (Certification fees and other IPO related services)

Other Adjustments*

*Refer note 6B with regards to expenses recoverable from holding company

121.77 172.10 157.55 140.08
262.77 430.29 419.85 423.20
164.92 210.55 176.19 156.60
11.48 5.86 7.3 17.82
69.25 119.87 110.72 78.48
3.18 5.35 451 4.53
24.05 26.15 27.26 21.64
18.25 25.76 25.39 21.31
7.27 8.87 8.40 7.61
49.37 73.10 68.09 52.58
53.08 80.85 72.99 50.02
1.98 3.45 3.03 2.68
1.50 2.00 2.00 2.00
48.18 44.91 55.30 37.41
354.02 451.34 475.11 301.37
56.34 67.88 60.08 57.41
80.42 81.48 100.41 74.30
656.02 822.09 752.35 653.69
. 23.24 - 1.09
2.31 0.57 3.93 =

i . y 1.10
2.60 . 25.25 2.23
115.92 143.95 138.76 114.89
2,104.68 2,799.66 2,694.30 2,322.04
1.98 2.90 2.80 2.65
0.55 0.23 0.03

16.52 : = ’

(16.52) . - -
1.98 3.45 3.03 2.68
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Bonfiglioli Transmissions Limited (Formerly known as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited)
Annexure VI - Notes to Restated Summary Statements

CIN: U29309TN1998PLC040717

(All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
December 31, 2022

Year ended
December 31, 2023

Year ended
December 31, 2024

Nine months period ended
September 30, 2025

31

Tax expense

A. Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss
Current tax - Continuing Operations
Current tax on profits for the period/year 664.02 577.64 561.15 583.42
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (+.04) (58.38) 7352 (12.47)
Current tax - Discontinued Operations = 10.14 6.14 9.07
Total 659.98 529.20 640.81 580.02
Deferred tax
Decrease/ (increase) in deferred tax assets (93.40) 15.53 (19.31) (7.28)
Total (93.40) 15.53 (19.31) (7.28)
Total 566.58 544.73 621.50 572.74
Tax reconciliation:
Restated Profit before income tax expense - Continuing Operations 2,218.47 2,445.82 2,092.34 2,251.20
Restate‘d Profit before income tax expense and gain on sale of Discontinued R 45.80 24.41 36.03
Operations
Restated Profit before income tax expense 2,218.47 2,491.62 2,116.75 2,287.23
Applied tax rate 25.168% 25.168% 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% 558.34 627.09 532.74 575.65
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating
taxable income:
Interest payable under Income Tax Act & GST 7 & 0.17 =
Interest payable under MSMED Act = = = 0.10
CSR Expenses 12.35 11.46 13.95 9.55
Adjustment for tax relating to earlier periods (+.04) (58.58) 73.52 (12.47)
Disallowance u/s 10(10CC) 1.33 1.73 1.10 =
Secondary adjustment on account of Repatriation of CSA charges for -
" . . - (35.39) - -
earlier years (Offered to tax in earlier years)
Lower Tax Rate for Long Term Capital Gain on Slump Sale - (1.49) - =
Others (1.40) (0.09) 0.02 (0.09)
Total Tax expense 566.58 544.73 621.50 572.74
The Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019.
B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

0.81

13.47

(5.48)
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Bonfiglioli Transmissions Limited (Formerly known as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited)
VI - Notes to d y Statements

CIN: U29309TN1998PLC040717

{All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

32 Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinuing Operations

During the financial year ended December 31, 2024, for strategic reasons, the Company had decided to transfer a portion of its business division to a newly incorporated entity
and thereby undertook restructuring activities of Slump sale of IT/ITES and R&D which led to the disposal of its business. Such disposal was completed on 30th September
2024

Fi 1 Impact of the Di 1

The financial effects of this transaction have been reflected in the restated summary statements as at and for the nine months period ended September 30, 2025. The profit or
loss from d red operations (disposal group) has been presented separately in the statement of profit and loss, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 105 -'Non
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations'. Accordingly, the profit and loss figures for the prior periods have been re-presented for comparitive purposes in
accordance with the requirements of the Ind AS 105 and consequently revenue from such discontinued operations are no longer disclosed in note 36(b) (Geographical segments|

to the restated summary statements.

C with Indian A ing St: ds (Ind AS)

The company has complied with the relevant Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in recording and reporting this transaction. This includes Ind AS 105 for the classification,
presentation and measurement of the disposed divisions, and Ind AS 1 for the presentation of fi |

This disclosure is made in accordance with the disclosure requirements under the Indian Accounting Standards.

Nine months period

Year ended Year ended Year ended
ended

September 30, 2025 D ber 31, 2024 D 31, 2023 D 31, 2022
REVENUES
Revenue from operations - 260.93 294.63 229.64
Total Revenues - 260.93 294.63 229.64
EXPENSES
Cost of raw materials & components consumed 0.46 2.50 1.73
Employee benefits expense 173.70 190.69 146.84
Depreciation and amortisation expense . 16.40 17.01 13.49
Other expenses ' 48.31 60.02 31.55
Total Expenses b 238.87 270.22 193.61
Profit before tax - 22.06 24.41 36.03
Gaun on sale of Division - 23.74 - .
Profit from Discontinued Operations = 45.80 24.41 36.03
Tax Exp of Di d Op B 10.14 6.14 9.07
Profit after tax from Discontinued Operations - 35.66 18.27 26.96
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33 IND A9 116 - Leaze Disclosure
The Compams hinz lenas contrasts for Land and vanous huibdmgs uaed i ita aperationt Laases of buddings gencrails have a lease term for 1 to 51 cara and lease of lnnd has a lense
securad by the lessor's itz to the leased 1a3ets Generath . the Company s restrcted from assigning wnd sub-

tarm of 95 sears The Compant 's oblizations under its leases
Ieasing the Isased assers
The Compans also has certain kases of buildings with Jease terms of 12 monthia or fsaz and leases willl low value The Compans applies the 'short-term lease’ and lease of low -value

assets’ meognition exemptions for there lrases

{il. Movemant In the carvying valiio of the Right to Use Aasst

o, 3 EY}
™ = s 2
Fasticutars 2023 2033 2033
TR ider HECH EEH] Tar
Depar 1A (50 10 [BREE
Adbelitiatt i 96 41 naot ezs
Lisyon gl duying the ¢ A 127 17T 11334
(Cicuing Satines 317.8% ECYNT EEXY)
(11). Claasification of curroat and nen curront labliitlos of the lonse iabilitiex
31, 31,
PATHURELOR. 2023 2022
Suprmnt i 56 W ET
Jeviny C200rTe b Lo 14925
Tatal Lease Lisbilities 96.66 G6.65
{Il1). Movement In the carrying value of the Lense Liabllity
part 31, a1,
sulere 2023 2022
Upzning Looue Liabdls 56,65 3J 062
L rsums Eovteyect diprer Hlim jrepod) e ar - 1904 34035
Arzretizn of nrresr (] e
L7 sal dusrag e [eroagy oar [T .
= Tttty (E vy Lol ey T8 A EER] EEREE]
kc'm.mg Lomxs Liahlllty 65.37 8665
(iv]. Contractual Maturitios of Laasa liabillty
[ 3L, a1,
Particulars 2024 2023
v rar R ¥
LAY ELEE) 4010
T
<20.06 £8.69 F6.6T
(v) The following amounts are recognised in profit or loaa:
35, ETH D I,
Exrticulary 2023 2024 2022
rjen st e wonss {ngnt e TEX, ST
Interent cspeane o deves fabitnee FREL] 294 BhE
Expensc relating to ahort-term leases (included in cther cxpensea) 346 713 1782
Cariem termicaienof feaee
‘Totul smount 0 in profit ar loas 35.47 [T Sk, U

The interest rale (eighted avemge incremental borrowing rate] for leee linbilities rang=a from 795 to 9% with maiurin betwesn 2025.2029
The Compans does not face A aignificant liquidity risk wieh cegard 10 its [ense linhilibes as the current asaets are sulicient fo meet the obligntions related to 1he lense labilitie aa
and when they fall dug

Srans) and lsase invalving

The company has adapted the practical expedicncy of recogmiming Shart term (sase {Leasing of IT aszeta hike laptap), Lease of Low value [Le
vanable rentaia jawomge Gid narehause) in the statemant of Prafit and 1aaz in A stmight fine Bass disclosed a8 Rertal expenses

September 30, December 31, Docember 31. December 31,
34 Eamings per quity share [EPS) 2023 2024 2023 2022
Profit after rax - s Millions - Continwing Operations 1565139 191123 147598 1,787 53
Profit after tax - Ra Millions - Disconunued Qperations 3566 18 17 2696
Prailt after tax - & 1,651.89 1,946.89 1,495.23 1,714.42
Number of cquity shares of Ra 10 each as st the beginning of the 125,330,536 131,122,394 131,122,994 131,122,994+
Sumber of squits sharea of B3 10 ench as At the and of the yzar 125 330,536 125,330,536 131,122,994 131,122,994
Weighted avernge number of equin ahares of Ra 10 each 125,330,556 127,356,327 131,122,994 131,122,994
sutstanding durng the y=ar
EMect of dilution
1ssue of Bonus shares (Refer Note 46(0) 165,278 62,665,278 62,665,273 62 665,278
Weightea avemnge number of equin sharea ndjuated ior the effect 187,995 33+ 160,021,605 193,788,272 191,788,272
of dilutior
Nominal value of cash =quits share fin Rs | 1000 1000 1000 1000
Earminga per Squin Share: (Ban.c and Diluted) - Conunuing 879 1006 762 871
Earmings per Equin Share: (Basic and Diluted) - Discontinued 019 009 a4
a79 1025 771 EEH

Earnings per £quin Share: (Basic and Diluted) - Continuing &
Discantinued Operations
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35 Dues to micro and small enterprises

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act

are as follows:

Particulars

As at
September 30, 2025

As at
December 31, 2024

As at
December 31, 2023

As at
December 31, 2022

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining
unpaid as at the period/year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at
period/year end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to suppliers registered
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, for
payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

534.83

11.82

182.94

11.82

411.98

11.82

261.12

11.82

651.32

11.82

452.45

11.80

501.14

11.82

249.87

0.20

11.60

36 Segment information

(a) Description of seg; ts and principal
The Board of Directors is considered to be the Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Company within the purview of Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The Board examines the Company's
performance and has determined the Company as a whole as one segment. Accordingly, the total segment revenue, total segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets, total
carrying amount of segment liabilities, total capital expenditure during the period/year, total amount of charge of depreciation and amortisation during the period/year are all as reflected in
the restated summary statements as at and for the nine month period ended September 30, 2025 and for the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

(b) The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from contract with customers broken down by location of the customers is shown in the table below.
Revenue from contract with customers (Continuing Operations) September 30, 2025 | December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
India 10,538.16 13,645.33 12,711.34 11,326.38
China 148.23 411.43 592.70 494.75
USA 2,279.99 2,405.17 1,577.45 1,304.05
Italy 443.63 373.18 371.31 372.31
Germany 276.27 642.25 589.16 785.43
Other countries 761.65 782.90 848.96 1,109.26
Total 14,447.93 18,260.26 16,690.92 15,392.18

(e)  All non-current assets of the Company are located in India.

(d) Details of sale of products and Services (Continuing Operations)
Particul September 30, 2025 D ber 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Gear box 8,718.75 11,072.63 9,617.39 8,807.79
Gear motor 4,320.88 5,366.21 5,231.89 5,134.48
Others 1,408.30 1,821.42 1.841.64 1,449.91
Total 14,447.93 18,260.26 16,690.92 15,392.18
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37

37.1

37.2

Employee benefit obligations

Compensated absences
(As per note 37.1)
Particulars September 30, December 31, | December 31, December 31,
2025 2024 2023 2022
Current 12.58 9.03 9.40 7.80
Non-current 66.03 57.30 62.10 45.71
Total 78.61 66.33 71.50 53.51
Gratuity
(As per note 37.3)
PastisulaTs September 30, December 31, | December 31,| December 31,
2025 2024 2023 2022
Current 19.66 24.66 66.73 21.02
Non-current - - - -
Total 19.66 24.66 66.73 21.02

Compensated absences

Compensated absences cover the Company's liability for earned leave.

The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the
Company does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.
Hence, amounts to the extent of 66.03 (December 31, 2024 - Rs. 57.30 , December 31,2023 - Rs. 62.10 , December 31, 2022 - Rs. 45.71 ) is

presented as non-current.

Significant Actuarial Assumptions

September 30,

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

2025 2024 2023 2022
Discount Rate 6.54% 6.96% 7.40% 7.50%
Future Salary Rate % 11.86% 11.60% 11.22% 8.42%

Post-employment obligations

Defined contribution plan - Provident fund

Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to
registered provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no

further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Nine Month Period

Year ended

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars ended September December 31, | December 31, | December 31,
30, 2025 2024 2023 2022

Provident fund 36.78 52.74 45.72 38.28

Total 36.78 52.74 45.72 38.28

2
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37.3 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period
of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company
makes contribution to LIC.

(a) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movement in the net defined benefit obligation and plan assets over the year

are as follows:

Present value

Fair value of

Partionlazs of obligation plan assets Nt amount
Jan 1, 2022 142.90 133.90 9.00
Current service cost 18.20 - 18.20
Interest expense/(income) 11.10 9.11 1.99
Past service costs 20.12 - 20.12
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 49.42 9.11 40.31
Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic (1.66) - (1.66)
assumptions :
i 4 : ; (14.44) =

(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (14.44)
Effect of Experience (gains)/losses (3.47) - (3.47)
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts - 2.21 (2.21)
included in interest expense/(income) =
Total amoun.t re‘cognxsed in other (19.57) 2.21 (21.78)
comprehensive income
Employer contributions - 6.51 (6.51)
Benefit payments (11.64) (11.64) -

Experience (gains)/losses
December 31, 2022 161.11 140.09 21.02

Present value

Fair value of

pacticulics of obligation plan assets Necanount
Jan 1, 2023 161.11 140.09 21.02
Current service cost 16.65 - 16.65
Interest expense/(income) 11.50 10.52 0.98
Past service costs - -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 28.15 10.52 17.63
Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic (1.83) - (1.83)
assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 38.31 - 38.31
Effect of Experience (gains)/losses 16.15 - 16.15
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts - (0.88) 0.88
included in interest expense/(income)
Total amount recognised in other 52.63 (0.88) 53.51
Employer contributions = 25.43 (25.43)
Benefit payments (7.71) (7.71) -
Experience (gains)/losses - -
er 31, 2023 234.18 167.45 66.73
// 530,\\ —
’\
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Present value

Fair value of

Particulacs of obligation plan assets Netantount
Jan 1, 2024 234.18 167.45 66.73
Current service cost 22.37 - 2237
Interest expense/ (income) 15.93 12.40 3.53
Past service costs - - -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 38.30 12.40 25.90
Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic (5.11) - (5.11)
assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 1173 ) Ly
Effect of Experience (gains)/losses 3.35 5 3.35
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts - 1.08 (1.08)
included in interest expense/(income)
Total amount recognised in other 10.03 1.08 8.95
Employer contributions - 73.65 (73.65)
Benefit payments (10.06) (10.06) -
Experience (gains)/losses

(31.08) (27.81) (3.27)

December 31, 2024 241.37 216.71 24.66

Present value

Fair value of

Particslars of obligation plan assets Net amonnt
Jan 1, 2025 241.37 216.71 24.66
Current service cost 20.48 20.48
Interest expense/ (income) 1191 11.32 0.59
Past service costs =
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 32.39 11.32 21.07
Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic (4.32) (4.32)
assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 10.15 10.15
Effect of Experience (gains)/losses (2.83) (2.83)
. 0.21) 0.21
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts
included in interest expense/(income)
Total amount recognised in other
S 3.00 (0.21) 3.21
comprehensive income
Employer contributions 29.28 (29.28)
Benefit payments (15.04) (15.04) -
Transfer out -
261.72 242.06 19.66

September 30, 2025
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\

I

S\ INDIA )~

Page 36 of 55



[ x| BonFig’:ioli
A Sl e

Bonfiglioli Transmissions Limited (Formerly known as Bonfiglioli Transmissions Private Limited)
Annexure VI - Notes to Restated Summary Statements

CIN: U29309TN1998PLC040717

(All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The net liability/ (asset) disclosed above relates to funded plan as follows:

Particulars September 30, December 31, | December 31, December 31,
2025 2024 2023 2022
Present value of funded obligation 261.72 241.37 234.18 161.11
Fair value of plan assets 242.06 216.71 167.45 140.09
Deficit / (surplus) of funded plan 19.66 24.66 66.73 21.02

(b) Significant actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars September 30, December 31, | December 31,] December 31,
2025 2024 2023 2022
Discount rate 6.54% 6.96% 7.40% 7.50%
Salary growth rate 11.86% 11.60% 11.22% 8.42%
Attrition rate 14.74% 13.65% 12.14% 10.20%

Notes:

i. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term

of the obligation.

ii. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account, inflation, seniority, promotions and other

relevant factors, such as demand and supply in the employment market.

(c) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in assumption

Particulars September 30, December 31, | December 31, December 31,
2025 2024 2023 2022

Discount rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

Salary growth rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Increase in assumption

September 30, December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

Particulars 2025 2024 2023 2022
Discount rate 253.93 233.78 226.12 155.55
Salary growth rate 296.10 248.67 242.07 166.77

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Decrease in assumption

September 30, December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

Pafticnlars 2025 2024 2023 2022
Discount rate 270.15 249.61 242.96 167.24
Salary growth rate 254.84 234.58 226.87 155.93

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

CHENNAI
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(d) Plan assets

The Company has plan assets by way of investments funds in Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).

(e) Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility

The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to

Government of India bond rate.

If the return on plan asset is lower than this rate, then it will create a plan deficit.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an yields increase in the value of

the plans’ bond holdings.

(f) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plan for the period/year ending September 30, 2025 is Rs. 30.50 (December 31, 2024 is Rs.
26.54 , December 31,2023 is Rs. 23.16 , December 31, 2022 is Rs. 15.84 .)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years (December 31, 2024 - 8 years, December 31, 2023 - 8 years, December

31, 2022 - 8 years).

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

Less than Between Between Over 5
a year 1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years years Total
September 30, 2025 30.50 36.67 100.78 195.26 363.21
December 31, 2024 26.54 28.37 96.08 183.86 334.85
December 31, 2023 23.16 26.27 89.22 190.50 329.15
December 31, 2022 15.84 18.88 63.00 132.65 230.37
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38 Related party discl

A Name of related parties and nature of relationship
(i) Where control exists

Ultimate Holding Company Bon-Fi SRL
Holding company Bonfiglioli S.p.A.

(ii) Other related parties with whom transactions have
taken place during the year

Fellow subsidiaries Bontfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - Australia
Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - New Zealand
Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH (until June 2024)**

Bonfiglioli South Africa Pty Ltd.

Bonfiglioli U.S.A. Inc.

Bonfiglioli Vietnam Co. Ltd

Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A.

Bonfiglioli Glic Aktarma ve Otomasyon Teknolojileri Sanayi ve Tic. A.S.
Bonfiglioli (U.K) Ltd

Bonfiglioli South Last Asia Pte. Ltd.

Bonfiglioli Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

Tecnotrans Bonfiglioli SA

Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH

Bonlfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

Bonfiglioli Slovakia sro

Bonlfiglioli Redutores do Brasil Industria e Comércio Ltda
Bonfiglioli Transmission S.A.S

O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH

Bonfiglioli Drive Solutions Private Ltd

Bonfiglioli Technology Space Pvt. Ltd

(iii) Others Clementino Bonfiglioli Charitable Trust*
B.R.T. S.p.A#
(iv) Key management personnel Mrs. Sonia Bonfiglioli, Promoter and Non-Executive Director

Mr. G.A Balaji, Chief Financial Officer and Whole-time director

Mr. Kennady V Kaipally, Managing Director (w.e.f. November 11,

2025) and Whole Time Director (upto November 09, 2025)

Mr. Massimo Sarti, Non Executive Director (w.e.f. April 23, 2025)

Mr Marco Mossuto, Non-Executive Director (w.e.f February 03, 2026)
Mr. Ravindra Pisharody, Independent Director

Mrs Rossella Schiavini, Independent Director (w.e.f February 03, 2026)
Mr Sundaresan Ananthanarayanan, Independent Director (w.e.f February 03, 2026)
Mr. Sunil kumar, Company Secretary (w.e.f November 27, 2024)

Mr. Fausto Carboni, Director (till July 3, 2024)

Ms. Bindhu Madhavi M (till April 21, 2023)

Mr. Vijaykrishna (till August 12, 2022)

Ms. Arthi N (till November 16, 2023)

* represents CSR trust in which Company is a trustee
# represents Company in which Sonia Bonfiglioli is a director and her relative is a shareholder

The above information regarding related parties has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

(**) Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH is no more existance, since it was merged in Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH effective from 01.07.2024
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v Stat t

B Particul of ti and bal with related parties

Description ptembes 30, Bergly D ver 3y ‘D o
2025 2024 2023 31, 2022

(a) Transactions during the year
Sale of goods
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - Australia 85.01 155.54 102.54 117.48
Bonfiglioli Vietnam Co. Ltd 55.16 43.79 37.54 27.64
Bonfiglioli U.S.A. Inc. 506.14 603.36 328.77 179.08
Bonfiglioli Slovakia sro 13.49 83.06 176.77 101.23
Bonfiglioli South Africa Pty Ltd. 5.77 2.44 . 8.24 0.71
Bonfiglioli Transmission S.A.S 64.67 59.71 216.06 298.88
Bonfiglioli Redutores do Brasil Industria e Comércio Lida 179.79 132.78 25.83 98.62
Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - New Zealand 12.55 10.65 18.21 8.76
Bonfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd 110.88 95.59 89.54 163.53
Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH 276.27 628.32 571.01 715.51
Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. 336.40 301.24 336.19 333.91
Bonfiglioli Gii¢ Aktarma ve Otomasyon Teknolojileri Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. 17.44 35.26 86.24 63.18
Bonfiglioli (U.K) Ltd 225.85 85.50 60.35 94.09
Bonfiglioli South East Asia Pte. Ltd. 21.71 67.85 57.65 77.02
Bonfiglioli Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. 34.32 310.63 499.28 314.48
Tecnotrans Bonfiglioli SA 74.37 84.12 53.14 85.59
Bonfiglioli Drive Solutions Private Ltd 1187 98.96 . z
Others:
B.R.T. S.p.A 43.23 47:17 21.72 35.02
Sale of services (from continuing operations)
Holding company:
Bonfiglioli S.p.A. 2.25 8.09 10.75 10.40
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. 0.62 0.03 2.65 0.85
Bonfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd 2.92 0.35 0.16 0.32
Bonfiglioli Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. 0.10 1.18 3.72 0.93
Bonfiglioli Transmission S.A.S = 3 2 0.25
Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH - 1.25 0.14 0.60
Bonfiglioli South East Asia Pte. Ltd. - - 0.11 -
Bonfiglioli Redutores do Brasil Industria e Comércio Ltda e ] - 0.17
Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - Australia 0.10 - - -
Bonfiglioli U.S.A. Inc. 2.58 - - -
Bonfiglioli Vietnam Co. Ltd < 0.01 - 0.69
Tecnotrans Bonfiglioli SA - = = 0.17
Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH - 4.11 7.67 1.00
Bonfiglioli Drive Solutions Private Ltd 4.00 3.40 1.78 1.34
Bonfiglioli Technology Space Pvt Ltd 1.81 0.52 - -
Sale of services (from discontinued operations-also refer note 32)
Holding company:
Bonfiglioli S.p.A. - 252.36 284.29 221.33
Fellow Subsidiaries:
O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH = 8.57 10.34 8.31
Sale of Discontinued Operations
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonlfiglioli Technology Space Pvt Ltd - 115.50 - -
Commission income
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. - 3.37 1.98 +.20
0&K Antriebstechnik GmbH & 1.73 1.83 0.77
Interest Income on loan given
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Technology Space Pvt Ltd 7.83 2.09 - -
Sale of Property, plant and equipment
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Drive Solutions Private Ltd 14.98 = = =
s dary Adjust t r d as per T fer pricing
Holding company:
Bonfiglioli S.p.A. - 140.63 - -
Loan given
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Technology Space Pvt Ltd - 218.51 - -
Loan repaid during the period/year
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Technology Space Pvt Ltd 90.05 - - -
Exp T ble from holdi pany
Holding company:
Bonfiglioli S.p.A. 16.52 - - -
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B Particul of t 131 and bal with related parties

Description September 30, ber 31, | D ber 31, Di b
2025 2024 2023 31, 2022

Purchase of goods

Fellow subsidiaries:

Bontfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd 5.76 BT 7.41 2.23

Bonlfiglioli Vectron GmbH = 1.39 3.01 102

Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH 1.87 1.01 0.11 +.71

Bonfiglioli U.S.A. Inc. 0.18 0.07 0.42 2.29

Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. 1,353.20 1,985.81 2,303.32 1,628.36

Bonfiglioli Redutores do Brasil [ndustria e Comércio Ltda 0.48 - 0.06 0.04

Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - Australia 0.00* 0.31 0.17 0.60

Bonfiglioli South Africa Pty Ltd. 0.17 0.80 0.75 0.92

Bonfiglioli (U.K) Ltd = - - 0.00*

Bonfiglioli Transmission S.A.S 0.10 0.29 0.00* 0.00*

Tecnotrans Bonfiglioli SA - 0.04 - (0.01)

0&K Antriebstechnik GmbH 9.63 4.74 1.24 0.08

Bonfiglioli Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. = 28.29 11.82 ®

Bonfiglioli Drive Solutions Private Ltd 296.06 82.53 17.16 -

Bonfiglioli Giic Aktarma ve Otomasyon Teknolojileri Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. 0.01 = 0.02 0.02

Others:

B.R.T. S.p.A 27.36 76.28 83.70 68.11

Professional fees

Holding company:

Bonfiglioli S.p.A. 321.10 420.33 441.21 371.06

Sales commission expense

Fellow subsidiaries:

Bonfiglioli U.S.A. Inc. 35.56 36.39 25.14 23.70

Special project ( E-commerce)

Holding company:

Bonfiglioli S.p.A. - 4.45 - -

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment

Fellow subsidiaries:

Bonfiglioli Drive Solutions Private Ltd 3731 2 - =

R ion to Key ial p 1

Key Managerial personnel (Refer note ¢ below) 22.39 52.83 39.50 41.40

Salary advance given during the year

Key Managerial personnel:

Mr. Kennady V Kaipally 12.10 - - -

Sitting fees to Director

Key Managerial personnel:

Mr. Ravindra Pisharody 1.50 2.00 2.00 2.00

Other exp (includi i t of exp )

Fellow subsidiaries:

Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. 2.03 0.28 0.64 0.49

Bonfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd 0.86 0.34 0.52 0.01

Bonfiglioli Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd 0.00* 0.21 - -

Bonfiglioli Slovakia sro 0.52 0.62 0.61 -

Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - Australia - 0.13 - -

Bonfiglioli Vietnam Co. Ltd 0.46 0.01 0.00* 0.08

Bonfiglioli Redutores do Brasil Industria e Comércio Ltda = 0.79 - 1.14

Bonfiglioli (U.K) Ltd - - 0.24 -

Bonfiglioli U.S.A. Inc. 0.10 1.76 0.58 0.21

Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH - = = 0.03

Royalty

Holding company:

Bonfiglioli S.p.A. 649.78 813.32 741.26 641.61

Donation

Others:

Clementino Bonfiglioli Charitable Trust 2.89 3.10 3.15 2.90

Dividend Paid

Holding company:

Bonlfiglioli S.p.A. 927.45 689.32 639.71 1,599.26

Fellow subsidiaries:

Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH = - 15.91 39.77
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B Particulars of transactions and balances with related parties

Description September 30, ber 31, ber 31,| D b
2025 2024 2023 31, 2022
Buy Back of Equity Shares
Holding company:
Bonlfiglioli S.p.A. - 324.50 -
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH = 395.50 - -
(b) Balances as at the end of the year
Trade receivables
Holding company:
Bonfiglioli S.p.A. 0.91 89.38 147.99 127.51
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bontfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - Australia 44.93 36.79 38.56 25.87
Bonfiglioli Transmission S.A.S 35.20 10.34 50.51 107.70
Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - New Zealand 9.13 3.78 6.70 1.53
Bonfiglioli Vietnam Co. Ltd 31.65 18.70 12.18 10.26
Bonfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. 62.95 33.78 23.32 40.31
Bonfiglioli Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. 10.50 9.27 174.24 77.85
Bontfiglioli Slovakia sro 3.88 12.94 21.48 82.78
Bonfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. 212.97 84.67 91.51 85.07
Bonfiglioli U.S.A. Inc. 190.26 321.58 140.27 73.48
Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH ~ = 7.81 N
Bonfiglioli South Africa Pty Ltd 4.88 2.11 3.76 0.35
Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH 145.40 57.68 240.53 322.34
Bonfiglioli Redutores do Brasil Industria e Comércio Ltda 75.07 42.97 7.65 32.47
Bonfiglioli Glic Aktarma ve Otomasyon Teknolojileri Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. 18.59 0.60 14.62 20.77
Bonfiglioli South East Asia Pte. Ltd. 6.24 24.72 41.24 28.72
Bonfiglioli (U.K) Ltd 143.35 35.63 20.81 28.24
Tecnotrans Bonfiglioli SA 26.26 39.09 4.48 6.64
O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH - 3.36 7.82 5,21
Bonfiglioli Drive Solutions Private Ltd 33.43 33.70 1.92 1.44
Bonfiglioli Technology Space Pvt Ltd 2.81 4.12 - =
Others:
B.R.T. S.p.A 13.71 18.22 2.04 10.03
Trade payables
Holding company:
Bonfiglioli S.p.A. 611.25 471.22 537.68 484.04
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Transmission S.A.S - 0.10 0.01 -
Bonfiglioli Drives (Shanghai) Co. Ltd 3.25 1.01 6.33 0.53
Bonfiglioli Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. 0.00* - 12.06 -
Bonfiglioli U.S.A. Inc. 36.77 38.72 28.82 23.72
Bontfiglioli Riduttori S.p.A. 665.67 478.32 816.07 604.17
Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - Australia 0.72 0.14 0.03 -
Bonfiglioli Transmission (Aust.) Pty Ltd - New Zealand 0.01 - - 0.08
Bonfiglioli Vietnam Co. Ltd 0.52 0.01 - -
Bonfiglioli South Africa Pty Ltd. 5.84 0.02 0.24 0.70
Bonfiglioli (U.K) Ltd - - 0.24 -
Bonfiglioli Vectron GmbH = = 1.79 1.13
Bonfiglioli Deutschland GmbH 1.30 0.88 0.11 -
Tecnotrans Bonfiglioli SA 0.07 - - -
Bonlfiglioli Slovakia sro 0.29 0.01 0.28 -
Bonfiglioli Giic Aktarma ve Otomasyon Teknolojileri Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. 0.01 - 0.02 0.03
Bonfiglioli Redutores do Brasil Industria ¢ Comércio Ltda 0.00* - 0.07 -
Bonfiglioli Drive Solutions Private Limited 47.00 23.41 6.88 -
O&K Antriebstechnik GmbH 7.97 - 1.28 0.09
Bonfiglioli Technology Space Pvt Ltd 0.41 0.00* - -
Others
B.R.T. S.p.A 10.02 7.51 28.53 20.13
Loan given (Outstanding as at balance sheet date)
Fellow subsidiaries:
Bonfiglioli Technology Space Pvt Ltd 128.46 218.51 “ -
Other receivable
Holding company:
Bonfiglioli S.p.A. 53.20 140.63 - -
Interim Dividend Payable (Net of tax deducted at source)
Holding company:
Bonfiglioli S.p.A. - 191.76 - -
Remuneration Payable to key managerial personnel
Mr G.A Balaji 2.01 5.59 3.68 247
Mr. Kennady V Kaipally 14.55 26.89 17.28 13.56
Mr. S Sunil Kumar 0.04 0.01 - -
Salary advance (Outstanding as at balance sheet date)
Key Managerial personnel:
Mr. Kennady V Kaipally 12.10 - - -
ecoverable from holding company
16.52 - - -
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C Details of R ion to Key ¥ ial P 1
‘Nine months period ended
September 30, 2025
Particulars Mr. "
Mr G.A Balaji | Kennady V 1 Sunil
Kaipally Kumar

(a) short-term employee benefits 9.26 13.55 1.1
(b) post-employment benefits 1.29 1.06 0.04
(c) other long-term benefits 3.09 16.08# 0.03

(d) reversal long term benefits accrued in previous years** - (23.12) -
‘Total 13.64 7.57 1.18

# includes provision created towards bonus amounting to 6.66 MINR payable in 2028 subject to satisfaction of certain conditions and pension amounting to
5.38 MINR payable at the time of retirement subject to satisfaction of certain conditions.

** during the current year owing to non-satisfaction of conditions, the Company has reversed provision for bonus created in earlier years amounting to Rs.
23.12.

Year ended December 31, 2024
Particulars Mr.

Mr G.A Balaji | Kennady V 1":{’“::‘1
Kaipally
(a) short-term employee benefits 12.30 18.30 0.13
(b) post-employment benefits 1.40 2.70 =
(c) other long-term benefits 4.50 13.50 -
Total 18.20 34.50 0.13

Year ended December 31, 2023

Particulars Mr. "
Mr G.A Balaji | Kennadyv | % Bindhu M
Kaipally Madhavi M Arthi N
(a) short-term employee benefits 9.00 13.90 0.40 0.80
(b) post-employment benefits 0.40 0.50 - =
(c) other long-term benefits 3.50 11.00 - -
Total 12.90 25.40 0.40 0.80

Year ended December 31, 2022

Particulars M Ms.
T.
s Mr Bindhu
Mr G.A Balaji Kenfmdy v Vijaykrishna |Madhavi
Kaipally M
(a) short-term employee benefits 10.30 14.80 1.48 0.22
(b) post-employment benefits 0.20 0.20 - =
(c) other long-term benefits 1.80 12.40 - -
‘Total 12.30 27.40 1.48 0.22

Information with respect to to post employment benefit plan is disclosed in note 37
Transaction with related party - Transfer price:

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and all the related party outstanding
balances as at the period/year end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash except for loan provided to related parties as disclosed in note 5
to the restated summary statements. Further, there are no guarantees provided or received to/from any related party. For the nine month period ended
September 30, 2025 and for the earlier years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022, the Company has assessed that no
impairment is required in respect of amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken for each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. Also, the Company has entered into international transactions with related
parties and has a policy of maintaining documents as prescribed by the Income-tax Act, 1961 to prove that these transactions are at arm's length and believes
that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

*Represents amount less than INR 0.01 Million.
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(All amounts in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

39 Fair value measurements

(a) Fair Values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than those the
carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars September | December | December | December September | December |December 31, December
30, 2025 31,2024 | 31, 2023 31, 2022 30, 2025 31, 2024 2023 31, 2022
Investments 1.13 1138 1.13 1.13 1.13 1.3 1.13 1.13
Loans 128.46 218.51 - - 128.46 218.51 - -
Other Financial assets 139.39 203.43 120.18 268.01 139.39 203.43 120.18 268.01
Total 268.98 423.07 121.31 269.14 268.98 423.07 121.31 269.14
Short term Borrowings - - 1,107.86 1,437.44 - - 1,107.86 1,437.44
Lease liabilities 37.94 65.57 96.66 56.65 37.94 65.57 96.66 56.65
Other financial liabilities 120.62 449.57 296.16 227.07 120.62 449.57 296.16 227.07
Total 158.56 515.14 | 1,500.68 1,721.16 158.56 515.14 1,500.68 1,721.16

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash & cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

(b) Fair Values hierarchy

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

Note
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Investments

- Equity instruments (quoted) 4 1,13 -
Derivative instruments 6B -
Total 1.13 - -
Financial liabilities
Derivative instruments 16B - 5.25
Total B 5.25 -

- 1.13 = -

1.13 - =

5 - 11.68 &
11.68 -

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Note

Financial assets
Investments

- Equity instruments (quoted) 4
Derivative instruments 6B - 4.24
Total 1.13 4.24 - 1.13 - -
Financial liabilities
Derivative instruments
Total - -

1.13 - - 1.13 - -

16B = 2 = - 2341 -
- - 23.41 -

Hierarchy:
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices or realisable price as on the date of reporting. This includes
listed equity instruments that have realisable price as agreed in the share purchase agreement.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

(c) Valuation process

The finance department of the Company performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes,
including level 3 fair values. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO and the finance department which is in

accordance with the Company's policy.

(d) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The fair values for other financial assets were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a risk adjusted discount rate. They are classified as
level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

SN
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40 Financial risk management

(A

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and
how the entity manages the risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other |Ageing analysis Diversification of bank
than cash and cash equivalents, financial assets |Credit ratings deposits and review of
measured at amortised cost credit ratings, credit
limits and letters of
credit
Liquidity risk Trade payables, borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow Availability of
forecasts committed credit lines
and borrowing facilities
Market risk - foreign exchange [Future commercial transactions Sensitivity analysis Monitoring exchange
Recognised financial assets and liabilities not rate movements and
denominated in Indian rupee (Rs.) forward foreign

exchange contracts

Market risk - interest rate Short-term borrowings at variable interest rates |Sensitivity analysis Availability of
committed credit lines
and borrowing facilities

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, financial assets measured at amortised cost and
credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables.

(i) Credit risk management
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally deposits surplus cash with banks holding high credit ratings.

Credit risk with respect to domestic and export trade receivable (other than receivables from related parties) is managed by the Company through
periodical review of their credit worthiness. The Company does not perceive any credit risk in respect of receivables from related parties.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is|
performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where appropriate, credit guarantee cover is taken.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and

supportive forwarding-looking information.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within one year from the due date. This definition of default is
determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are located in several
jurisdictions and industries .
(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for loss allowance based 12 month expected credit loss except in the case of trade receivables which are provided based on life-
time expected credit loss and on a specific identification basis.

Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2025:
(a) Expected credit loss for other financial assets at amortised cost

The risk of default in carrying value of other financial assets is negligible and hence no provision for expected credit loss has been provided.

(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables and contract assets under simplified approach:

Ageing Less than 6 months | More than 6 months Total
Gross carrying amount - Trade receivables 4,794.74 41.95 4,836.69
Loss allowance rate - Trade receivables -0.18% -97.74% -1.02%
Expgct'ed credit losses (Loss allowance (8.43) (41.00) (49.43)
provision)

Carrying amount of tr:'id.e receivables (net 4,786.31 0.95 4,787.26
of loss allowance provision)
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Year ended December 31, 2024:
(a) Expected credit loss for other financial assets at amortised cost
The risk of default in carrying value of other financial assets is negligible and hence no provision for expected credit loss has been provided.

(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplitied approach:

Ageing Less than 6 months | More than 6 months Total
Gross carrying amount - Trade receivables 4,123.04 32.29 4,155.33
Loss allowance rate - Trade receivables -0.69% -97.03% -1.44%
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance _
provision) {28.38) (31.33) (39.71)
Carrying amouut of trade receivables (net

4,094.66 0.96 4,095.62

of loss allowance provision)

Year ended December 31, 2023:
(a) Expected credit loss for other linancial assets at amortised cost
The risk of default in carrying value of other linancial assets is negligible and hence no provision for expected credit loss has been provided

(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

Ageing Less than 6 months | More than 6 months Total
Gross carrying amount - Trade receivables 4,111.00 30.95 4,141.95
Loss allowance rate - Trade receivables -0.23% -94.59% -0.93%
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance {9.34) (29.27) {38.61)
Carrying amount of triu:!e receivables (net 4,101.66 1.68 4,103.34
of loss allowance provision)

Year ended December 31, 2022:

(a) Expected credit loss for other financial assets at amortised cost

The risk of default in carrying value of other financial assets is negligible and hence no provision for expected credit loss has been provided.

(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

Ageing Less than 6 months | More than 6 months Total
Gross carrying amount - Trade receivables 3,781.72 28.70 3,810.42
Loss allowance rate - Trade receivables -0.40% -97.54% -1.13%
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance (15.03) (27.99) {43.02)
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net

of loss allowance provision) 3,766.69 0.71 3,767.40

{iv) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

{a) Other financial assets
There is no loss allowance provision created for other financial assets.

{b) Trade receivables

During the year, the Company has written off/(back) of trade receivables September 30, 2025 - Rs. (10.28) (December 31, 2024 - Rs. 21.10, December
31, 2023 - Rs. (4.41), December 31, 2022 - Rs. (20.98) ) and it does not expect to receive future cash flows or recoveries from collection of cash fows

previously written-off.

Loss allowance on December 31, 2024 {59.71)
Changes in loss allowance - changes in risk parameters 10.28
Loss allowance on September 30, 2025 {49.43)
Loss allowance on December 31, 2023 {38.61)
Changes in loss allowance - changes in risk parameters (21.10)
Loss allowance on December 31, 2024 (59.71)
Loss allowance on December 31, 2022 {43.02)
Changes in loss allowance - changes in risk parameters 4.41
Loss allowance on December 31, 2023 {38.61)
Loss allowance on December 31, 2021 (64.00]
Changes in loss allowance - changes in risk parameters 20.98
Loss allowance on December 31, 2022 (43.02)
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(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of a prudent liquidity risk management is to maintain
sufficient liquidity and ensure availability of funds to meet its obligations through:
(a) internal financing by way of daily cash flow projection
(b) fund and non-fund based working capital limits from various banks.
The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to financial liabilities and concluded it to be low.

The tables below analyse the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for non-derivative
financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

(i) Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 | December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Floating rate
- Expiring within 1 year (cash
credit, packing credit and

working capital demand loan) 1,825 825 Sl 388

The bank overdralft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank as per terms and conditions of the sanction letter issued by
the banker.

(i) Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Less than 6 months | 6 months to 1 year More than 1 year Total
September 30, 2025
Borrowings s . = =
Trade payables 3,798.69 - - 3,798.69
Other financial liabilities 108.52 - 12.10 120.62
Lease liabilities 21.02 14.31 4.73 40.06
Total 3,928.23 14.31 16.83 3,959.37
December 31, 2024
Borrowings = = = =
Trade payables 3,093.60 - = 3,093.60
Other financial liabilities 447.75 - 1.82 449.57
Lease liabilities 18.31 20.83 29.55 68.69
Total 3,559.66 20.83 31.37 3,611.86

Less than 6 months | 6 months to 1 year More than 1 year Total
December 31, 2023
Borrowings 1,107.86 - - 1,107.86
Trade payables 3,815.60 2 = 3,815.60
Other financial liabilities 275.85 = 20.31 296.16
Lease liabilities 17.85 18.72 60.10 96.67
Total 5,217.16 18.72 80.41 5,316.29
December 31, 2022
Borrowings 1,437.44 - - 1,437.44
Trade payables 2,817.09 = = 2,817.09
Other financial liabilities 216.03 # 11.04 227.07
Lease liabilities 29.14 13.13 21.43 63.70
Total 4,499.70 13.13 32.47 4,545.30
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)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, liquidity and other factors that could have an adverse eflect on realizable [air values or future ciash
flows to the Company. The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange risks and interest
rates as future specific market changes cannot be predicted normally with accuracy.

{i) Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to [oreign exchange risk arising {rom foreign currency transactions on account of sale / purchase of goods denominated in a

currency that is not the Company’s functional currency (Rs). The risk is measured through a forecast of foreign currency cash flows that would arise

due to the underlying assets and liabilities held.
The company review the import and exports in specilic currency and if there be the need to make payment over and above the receivables and balance

available in specific currency in EEFC account, then forward cover is taken to cover the exposure.

I!' Fonzig;& CUrrency exposure

The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk at the end of the reporting period/year are expressed as follows:

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
USD EUR JPY AUD NZD UsD EUR JPY AUD RZD
Financial assets:
Trade receivables 911.45 832.45 - 54.06 - 708.42 498.96 = 40.58
Derivative assets
Forsigh g forvied 885.43 52.67 : 718.09 : 58.08
conract
Net exposure to foreign
” 26.02 832.45 - 1.39 - (2.67) 498.96 - (17.50) -
exchange risks (assets]
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 55.98 1,046.44 161.53 0.00 45.10 966 02 90.91 0.14
Derivative liability
Fareign;cxchange forward 52.64 385.10 | 125.21 = 321.40 | 87.42
coniract
Net exposure to foreign
3.349 661.3 36.3 . - 45.10 644.62 3.49 0.14 B
exchange risks (liabilities) 8 “ LA %
December 31, 2023 Decemhber 31, 2022
USD EUR JPY AUD NZD UsSh EUR JPY AUD NZD
Financial assets:
Trade receivables 310.43 874.78 ~ 45.27 - 268.40 1,038.56 2 27.41 -
Derivative assets
Farelgn exchangs Rrasid 300.68 805.01 E 43.91 - 198 43 837.74 5 27.67 5
contract
Net exposure o forelgn 9.75 69.77 . 1.36 . 69.97 200.82 . (0.26) .
exchange risks {nssets) ) } ) B ) -
Financial labilities:
Trade payables 22.43 1,524.45 125.69 0.03 ~ 13.77 1,107.61 177.25 -
Derivative liability
Ferelgnachangp forwerd - 1,257.78 38.20 . 571.35| 92.81 - -
contract
Netexposuresty foreign 2z.43| 266.67] 87.49 0.03 | 187 536,26 84.44 £ i
hange risks (liabilities) : 5 Y h - ¥ .
i -
v 4
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September 30, 2025

December 31, 2024

Derivative financial | Derivative financial Derivative financial | Derivative financial
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts g 5.25 5 11.68
Total - 5.25 - 11.68
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Derivative financial | Derivative financial Derivative financial | Derivative financial
assets liabilities assets liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts 4.24 - 7 23.41
Total 4.24 - - 23.41

b) Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

Impact on profit before tax

September 30, 2025

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 1% *
INR/USD - Decrease by 1% *

INR/EUR - Increase by 1% *
INR/EUR - Decrease by 1% *

INR/JPY - Increase by 1% *
INR/JPY - Decrease by 1% *

0.23
(0.23)

1.71
(1.71)

(0.36)
0.36

(0.55)
0.55

(1.46)
1.46

(0.03)
0.03

(0.13)
0.13

(1.97)
1.97

(0.87)
0.87

0.56
(0.56)

(3.35)
3.35

(0.84)
0.84

Sensitivity analysis is not disclosed for NZD & AUD due to negligible impact on profit.

* Holding all other variables constant.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from short term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Company has not taken any interest rate swaps to convert the floating rate borrowings to fixed rate loans. The Company monitors the movement in
the interest rates and uses the prepayment option to repay the borrowings at the time when the interest rates are unfavourable. The assessment of]

viability of using the pre-payment option shall be evaluated by the finance team.

a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

September 30, 2025

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Variable rate borrowings

1,107.86

1,437 .44

Total

1,107.86

1,437.44

b) Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense

from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Impact on profit after tax

Impact on profit after tax

September 30, 2025

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Interest rates - increase by 100 basis points*
Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points*

(8.00)
8.00

(11.00)
11.00

* The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rates across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the
change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not

necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.
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Capital management
Risk management
The Compan 's objectives when managing capital are to

« safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
« maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Compam may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt
Consistent with others in the industn, the Compam monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio

Net ‘debt’ divided bt Total ‘equit’ (as shown in the balance sheet]

The Compam ‘s strategy is to maintain an optimal gearing ratio_The gearing rtios were as follows
As at al Asat Asat
30,2025 31,2024 | December 31, 2023 | December 31, 2022
Total equity [A] 9,252.96 8,530.92 8,053.35 7,253.74
Borrowings frefer note 15) - - 1,107 86 1437 44
Lease liabilities (refer note 18A and note 188) 3794 65.57 96 66 5665
lﬁ?s Cash and cash equivalents (refer note (1416.23] i 446.67) 565,95 (1,086.71]
Less  Bank balances other than cash and - -
b alaTE b (250.00) 094) (1.700.12) (1,680.42)
Net debt (B) (1,628.29) (1,382.04) (1,400.92) (1,273.04)
Gearing ratio (B/A) -17.60% -16.20% -17.40% -17.55%
C and C
Contingent liabilitles
— As at As at D 31,[As at D, 31,[ AsatD
30, 2025 2024 2023 31,2022
Disputed Income-tax demands pending before vanous forums* 79.092 86.50 17.10 17.10
Indirect tax matters 2.76 - - -

+ Includes demand orders received under Income Tax Act,196 1 with respect to certain disallowances of expenditure for AY 04-05 (proceedings pending before High Court), AY 2122 (Proceedings pending with CIT-Appeals) and
AY 22.23 (demand Order recieved from Assessing Officer) amounting to 4338 (Dec-24 32,40, Dec-23 17.10 Dec-22 17.10) and downward transfer pricing adjustments relating to certain corporate support charges for AY 1516,

17-18, 18-19, 20-21 and 23-24 amounting to 36.54 (Dec-24 54 13, Dec-23 Nil, Dec-22 Nil). Further, the amounts disclosed in Dec-24 relating to downward transfer pricing p the in tax and
\nterest amounting to 5413 owing to the application filed by the Company under The Direct Tax Vivad se Vishwas Scheme, 2024 in respect of which, the Compan: has received approval from the Income Tax Authorities
subsequently
=
T— As at As at D 31,[As at D 31,] AsatD
30, 2025 2024 2023 31, 2022
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 21393 346.90 362.70 41691
account, net of capital advances, and not provided for.
Following Ratios to be
Denominator September 30, 2025*| D 31, 2024 Variance Reason for variance

(a) Current Ratio {Times) Current assets Current liabilities 2.37 2.32 2.09%
(b) Debt-Equits Ratio (Times) Tl Dels fincinding Total equity 000 001 0.00%

lease liabilities)

Earnings for debt

service = Net profit

after taxes + Non.

cash operating Debt service = Interest The ratios presented are for mne months
{c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Times) like & Lease Pavments + 6518 142 4483 02| period and hence, not comparable to the|

previous vear

depreciation and Principal Repayments
other amortizations
Interest & other
adjustments etc

(d) Return on Equity Ratio (Percentage) Nabproftiiter AVS; A SHarnolders 18.58% 23.05%, 19.40%
taxes Equity
(e) Inventon turnover ratio (Times) Cast of goods sold Average inventon 2.85 371 -23.27%
R § The ratios presented are for nine months
{f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio (Times) NetCredit Saliof  [Avérage tradg 227 458 -28.53%| period and hence, not comparable to the
Goods and Services | receivable
previous vear
(g) Trade pavables turnover ratio (Times) Net Credit Purchase |Average trade pavable 275 3.39 18 9446/
Working capital = The ratios presented are for mine months
(h) Capital tummover ratio (Times) Net sales Current assets - 243 359 32.35%| period and hence, not comparable to the|
Current liabilities previcus vear
(i) Net profit ratio (Percentage] :‘n‘;‘e”“’m“ aller Net sales 11.25% 10.219%| 10.16%
Famings before
Ret Capital employed (Percentay 4 25.18% % -16.84%
() Return on Capital employed (Percentage) e o e | Capital employed 5.18 30,28 16,84
k] Return on investment (Percentage) Profit after tax Total equit 17 85% 22.40% 2031°%4)
* Ratios are not comparable since results are from Januars 01, 2025 to September 30, 2025
Particulars
31,2024 | December 31,2023 Variance Reasan for variance
(@] Current Ratio (Times) Current assets Current liabilities 232 186 24.93%
; 3 Total Debt (including . | No borrowings outstanding as of
(b) Debt-Equitv Ratio (Times) Jease liabilities) Shareholder’s Equity 001 0.15 -94.86%| ocember 31, 2024
Eamings for debt
service = Net profit
after taxes + Non-
cash operating Debt service = Interest Reduced due to decrease in the loan
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Times) egpanass like & Letne Paymenta:s 142 056 155 46% | availed & increase in profit during the
depreciationand | Principal Repayments vear ended December 31, 2024
other amortizations
Interest & other
etc.
) Return on Equits Ratio (Fercentage) Net Profits after Average Sharcholder’s S| . &
taxes Equity
(e) Inventor\ turnover ratio (Times) Cost of goods sold Average inventory 371 3.65 1.81%
() Trade Receivables turnover ratio (Times) Net Credit Sale of | Average trade 4.58 434 5.49%
Goods and Services _|receivable
(g) Trade payables tumover ratio (Times) Net Credit Purchase |Average trade pasable 3.39 348 2.43%]
Working capital =
(h) Capital turnover ratio (Times) Net sales Current assets - 359 3s1 2.20%
Current liabilities
(i) Net profit ratio (Percentage) x‘:"ﬁ‘s B Net sales 10.219%] 8.68% 17.71%
() Retum on Capital employed (Percentage] Barmigs befors Capital employed 30,28% 24 54% 23.40%
interest and taxes
(K] Roturn on [ Profit after tax Total equin 22.40% 18.34% 22.16%

—
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Denominator | December 31, 2023 | December 31, 2022 Variance Reason for variance
{@) Current Ratio (Times) Current assets Current liabilities 186 199 6607
(b) Debt-Equitt Ratio (Times) Total Debt (including | gy . o1 oiders Equity 015 021 000%
lease liabilities)
Eamings for debt
service = Net profit
uﬂs}l" n:u(es; Non- i S Reduced due to increase in the loan
cash operating ebt service = Interes . _ |availed  (which was correspondinghy
(c] Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Times) expenses like & Lease Pavments + 0.56 115 5145%] ooaid) & reduction of profit during thel
depreciation and Principal Repayments o ried Dbcamber 31, 9023
other amortizations .
Interest & other
adjustments etc.
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (Percentage) Net Profitsafter Average Shareholder's 19.30% 23 41%, 17.57%
taxes Equity
(e) Tnventon_turnover ratio (Times) Cost of goods sold__|Average inventor 365 373 229%
(1) Trade Receivables tumover ratio (Times) Net Credit Sale of  Average trade 434 3.46 2.75%
Goods and Services | receivable
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio (Times) Net Credit Purchase |Average trade pajable 348 3.40 241%
Working capital =
(h) Capital tumover ratio (Times) Net sales Current assets - 351 3.32 5.90%
Current liabilities
(i) Net profit ratio (Percentage) et Profisg slier Net sales 8.68% 10.75%) -19.25%
taxes
(i) Retum on Capital employed (Percentage) R e Capital employed 24.54% 27.04% 9.26%
interest and taxes
(K] Return on mvestment (Percentage) Profit after tax Total equity 18 34% 23 260 21.17%

44 Other Regulatory Disclosure as required under Schedule IIT of Companies Act, 2013
a) he Compans does not have am benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder

b) The Compan is not declared as a willful defaulter by amy bank or financial Institution or other lender

¢] The Company has balance with below mentioned companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

0 No funds have been received by the Company from

@ No funds have been advanced or loar

Nature of
with T
struck- off Company

during the period/year Balance outstanding

Name of Struck off Company

As at December
31, 2024

As at September
30, 2025

September 30,

i December 31, 2024

Sales made by
company /Advance
received from
customer

S B Reshellers Pvt. Ltd - - 000

Green Handle Products Pvt Ltd Trade Pavables

Nature of
transactions with
struck- off Company

Transactions during the year Balance outstanding

Name of Struck off Company

As at December 31, | As at December 31,

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2023 s 2
Sales made by
S B Reshellers Pvt. Ltd pomparlyAdvarice
received from
customer
0.00

Green Handle Products Pvt Ltd ‘Trade Pavables

HNote: Since the numbers are reported in Millions amount 15 disclosed as Zero
4) The Company does nat have ans charges or satisfaction to be registered with ROC beyond stipulated statutony period

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the nine month period ended September 30, 2025 and years ended

€ pecember 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022

amy person(s) or entits (ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by

or on behalf of the funding party (“Ulimate Beneficianes] or provide any guarantee, secunty or the link on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

ned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kinds of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person(s) or entity[ies), including foreign entities (" *), with the understanding, whether recorded in wniting or otherwise, that the
Intermedian shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons, or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company

secunty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

) or provide any

(“Ultimate
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diselosed in Yote 5 o the restated umman satementa
5 Thers 1re A4 1Hi e Lons in the naturs of ued s teed income or income surrendered which neede o be accaunied in the boaks af accounts dunng the ) ear
! in the tax mave amar s under the Income T 10 1961
43 Carporate docial Respansibility (CER
e R at i Aot Gor | Asat
t 31,2024 a1, 203
11} Gross amount required (0 be spent oY the SiapANY dunng the period 3391 PRES]
[ ncmesa a6 eyt ettt Mg U e i) 15 1ia4
|11l) Amount spent during the ysar endlag oa 30th September 2025 In Cash Yot to be paid In Total
ST Conetrustian, Aequisinen af ang Aianly
bi on purpose sthar than la) sabave s 14 LI}
ts) Amount spent during the year snding on 318t Decombar 2024 In Cash YRR pALR Total
T Cammtreiony Suration of any a1ees ]
1t gagaess 2l Uz Jaf #hoaen 3343 V85T
lv) Amount spent during tha yonr nding on 31st December 2023 o Cash ot 1n be paid in Total
3) ConatruzUon/emmuintion of any aseats ¥
L4 i e et b abiee -
|¥i} Amount spent during the yaar anding on 31st Decomber 2022 In Cash Yt ““:g’"" = Total
 ConarTnn AGUIEn o art amsett
(bt n purpaes ather than (o) shave rn L an
Avat 30, Ax sl Fat &s 3% Decamber
023 a1, 2024 31,2023 31,2022
(<} Details raluted 10 apent / unapent stligascns
3 Cantribution ta Public Trunt
mbution o Charftable Trust 810 318 345
+ Contribution 19 Enhancing Vosation Skills <008 4459 28 10
d] Contnbution o Ensuring environmental suatina 008 st
¢) Cantibution to Prampuing health care including pr
1) Unepent amaunt in mlated (o
- Ongoing Arojex 997 Tt 170
Gl than e 1y mrrdect

TR e SR TR R e U
] P fer bt

b

Tt E et o
S Frmating He a e

Trlvest erp it of e vt 10D

il bt v 3emban

{x) Nature 3

Clernentins Banfiglioli Chasitable Trust - Re 289 ( December 31 2024 - Re
3 10, Qeeember 31, 20! 31.2022-Re 290

Ra 315 asud Decemn

I} Detailn of relaied party rans

TNU] WReTs A pronaian 1 MAGE With BPect (0 8 AN NCUITEd 0n SnlEnng AES A contmctudl aBlgansn, the mavements n the

ahall be yhown separateh

rovision during th
Detalls of Ongolag project and athar than ongolag projact

Asat 20, 2025
In cam of 8.135(6) {Ongeling Profect)
Opening Balance Amount required Amaunt spent durlng the perfed | Closlng balance
tn be spant during
10 Bepamte CBR From Companys | for deparate CS7 Tn Sepamte CHR
With rompany Unspant Al the yaar bank Ale yuwpeat Aje | With Company Unapant Ale
o i T | Nia] 5 o]
As at Dessmber AL, 1624
| 1In cass of 8.135(6] [Ongolng Projact]
Opening Balance Amount required Ameunt speat during the year Clonlug balance
- ta be spent during - — -
in Beparnte CBR From Company's For separsts Cul In peparate Coft
Wit empany Unapent 4/c the yesc Ale Ugspeat Aln With Compeay Taspent Ale
i i (CErE] I ] : 1 o
As at Decerntier 31, 2073
1n cam of 8.136(6] (Ougolug Project]
Opening Salanes Amount required Amount spent during the year Closlng balancs
to be spant during - "
With compan: | In Separte CHR h From Campmaoy's For Beparats CAR With Co: In Separate CAR
il | Usapent Ale 1 pane bank A/a [ Unspent Alc mpany [ Unapent &l
19 1103 - 1 [v2 [
Az at December 31, 2012
T cese of 51096} [Opgowag Froject]
Wpening Ualanzs Amount required Amorat speat dUrAg Lo year Closing Safancs
In Geparate CGR | to be spent during | From Companys | For Segarato Cu In Geparus CaR
With company Unapant Ale the wear bank Alc Unspent Ala With Compady Daspent Ale
o 0oy i -
T2 cans 01 5. 135151 [Othot than Ongoiny Projeci)
‘Amount depomtea
Amount mequired to
] in Bpeciflad Funa Amount spent
o
| Opening Balance S hchedule viy | b PERHE durimgene RO Cloaing balance
| withing & munths Fexz
17 a0 EaT)
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Events after the reporting period

The management has evaluated the likeh impact of presmiling relating or enh of reeiprocal tanffs and believes that ther are 10 materal impacts on the restated summarn statements of thy
Compans for the mne month period ended September 30, 2025 However. the mamgement will continue to momtor the stuation from the perspective of potential impact on the operations of the Compxun

Subsequent 1o the perod end, the shareholdera in its meoting lield en November 10, 2025 approved a bonus tasue of 52,665,278 cquity shases of INR 10 cach to eligitle Equity Shareholders of the Compan: halding equin
hares s hose name appears i the Register of Membors as on November 03, 2025 { Record date) in the proportion of | (Onej bonus Equity Shars for event 2 (Mo} Equity Shares of the Campam  The bonua isauc of 52.665.278
equitt shares of INR 10 each to eligible Equitt Shareholders of the Compan: «as allotted pursuant 10 approval bu the board of directors through a sirzular resolutien dated Januan 25, 2026 Consequently. the ealeulation of
basi= and diluted eamings per sham have been adjusted and restated fr all perods presented m accordance with IND AS 33 Eanung per share

Sunsequent t the permod end, the Mimstin of Labour %& Emplovment msued a notfication atating that the Code on Wages, 2019, the Industral Pelatons Code, 2020, the Code on Socul Secunty. 2020, and the Occupational
Safets, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020 will be sffzctive from havember 21, 2025 The Compam has assessed that the enactment of thess new labour codes and their resulting impact represent a nion adjusting
avent for tha financial statements for the mine month perod anded September 30, 2035, i accordance with Ind AS 10 - Events after the Reporting Fenod Further, the financal effect 1s not detenmined i the financid

for the h perod ended S 2025 since the Compain 15 1m the process of caming out a detailed svaluation of the finanand licat. ansing, lrom the ¥ of the new labour codes ard
expects to recognize a provision for the consequential impact i its fnancial statements for the wear ended December 31, 2025

Sulsequent 1o the period end, to align with the Group's business strategy m (ndu the Compam sntered 0t « Busmwess Trunefer Agreemant "8TA") on December 15, 2025 with s related purty. Bonfighols Dnve Solutions

Prvate Limited "BDSPLT, which 13 engaged in the manufacturisg of gear companents
Pursuant 1 the BTA, the Compam has acquirned the busmess of BDSPL, compnaing tangble movable properties. busness contracts, emplmnees, associated commercorl ngits. and has assumed the related Labilives, for &
purchase consideration of INR 214 40 The Compam has nasesscd this acquisiben as i business combination under common conuol However, no adjustments have Seen mada to the fnanaal statements for the nine month
period ended Septembar 30, 2025 1 accordance sith paragrph 1 of Appendix € of Ind 38 103 Buminess Combmations
The walue of the assets and habilitiea s as below
Particulars Amount
Properts. ol and squpment 15182
Inventones 5792
Other Aasets 2932
Total Assets |A} 270.07
Trade Pasables 1832
Other Curvent liabilines 735
Tatal Liabilities (8) 35.67
Net value of assets and liabilities (C1» (A) - [B) 214.40
214.40

for 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on bebalf of the Board of

Agreed purchase Conaideration (D)

Maintenance of books and reeords of the Company

e provider and used for santuming (ts records related ta P roll

The Compans has two accounting software’s for mauntaming its books of ncecurnts, one of which 13 opernted by a thind sty ver
In case of the SAP. such dat 18 mantauned 1 an applicaton hotad by the parent entity which s sceessible i India The Compam has mauntained daih baskeup for such electronic books of account i veriers located outside)
India from Januar O, 2024 ta Decembes 31, 2024 Futher, the Compans has enabled the audst trul featizrs and the same has operated throughout the sear ended December 31, 2024 for alf relevant transacton recorded iy
voftware except for certai telesant tables, audit claszes and fields undeshying the applicatien. the audit trail feature wis not enabled thisughout the tear Additenally, the audit trul in respect of the pericd Apnl 1. 7023 o)
December 31, 2023 haa not been prserved b the compan s pec the statuton wquirements fr record retantion

The Compam hay used an accounting saftuans (Alkdigs (fonmerls Allseci) whch 1 operated n 1 thid parn software servien provider, for mamtaunng ite pavroll books of account Management i m posessian of Sernes
Organization Contrels repost and has determined whether audit trul feature of the sud softsare was enatled and operated thmughout the «ear for all relevant trunwactions recorded mn the softunre or Whetler there were an
istaness of Ue audit traul feature being tampered with. m respect of an aceounting softwaze <here e audit trul has been enabled (2 was noted that the audst trul 13 not opemted throughout the sear ended December 11, 2024
far all relesant transactons recorded 1m the cofeware The wudit trul i mapect of the Apni 12023 to Decemnber 31.2023 has not been preserved I the compam a% per the atatutan equirements for record retention

The above statements should be read with Anipexure V- Summan of Matenal accountng policies and explanatars notes famnug part of Pestated Summan Statements and Anpexure VI Stntement of adjustments o Postated

Summan Htatomenta

ICAI Flrm Registration Number:

101 1 E300004
s
Chirag Shah

Parmer
and Chwf Finansal
Officer

Membership umber 1216) DIN 06630725 Din 08110794 M No 138368

Place Chenna Place Chennas Place Chernar Plaos Clienna
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Date Februan 05, 2026
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Audited i 1ol

Part A: ofr dj to

The accounting policies applied as at and for nine-month period ended September 30, 2025 and each of the years ended December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022 are consistent with those adopted in the preparation of financial statements for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2025

Material Adj 4

These Restated Summary Statements have been compiled from the Statutory Financial Statements and

(a) there were no changes in accounting policies during the years of these financial statements

(b) there were no material amounts which have been adjusted for in arriving at profit/ loss of the respective years; and

(c) there were no material adjustments for reclassification of the corresponding items of income, expenses, assets and liabilities, in order to bring them in line with the
groupings as per the Statutory Financial Statements and the requirements of the SEBI Regulations

Reconciliation between audited profit and restated profit:
For the nine-
month period For the year For the year
ended ended ended For the year ended
30-Sep-2025 31-Dec-2024  31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
A. Profit after tax (as per audited
financial statements) 1,651.89 1,946.89 1,495.25 1,714.49
B. Material restatement adjustments
(i) Audit qualifications - -
(ii) Other material adjustments Change in
accounting policies Other adjustments - -
Total Adjustments (B) - - - -
C; (PENNE faftesl YR X [pan fewtited 1,651.89 1,946.89 1,495.25 1,714.49
summary statements)

Reconciliation between audited total equity and restated total equity:

As at As at As at As at

30-Sep-2025 31-Dec-2024  31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
A. Audited total equity 9,252.96 8,530.92 8,053.35 7,253.74
B. 01 i
(i) Audit qualifications - - -
(ii) Other material adjustments - -
Change in accounting policies - -
Other adjustments - -
Total Adjustments (B) - - - -
C. Total Equity as Restated Summ . _ _ -
Statement oqf Aszets and Liabilities [A+;l]’y 9.292.20 559092 8,053.35 BHasnr

Part B) Non-Adjusting items

(a) Modification in Other Legal and Regul R i included in the auditor’s report on the fi ial of the Company, which do not
require any corrective adjustments in the Restnted Summary Statements:

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2024
Clause 2(b) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that
(i) the backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India on

daily basis;
(i) and for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

Clause 2(h) of Report on Other Legal and Regul Yy i of auditor's report
The modification relating to the maintenance ot accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in paragraph 2(b) above and paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g)

Clause 2(i)(vi) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of auditor's report

Based on our examination which included test checks, as explained in note 47 to the financial statements,

- the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has|
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, as described in note 47 to the financial statements, audit trail feature
is not enabled for certain tables and fields and certain changes made when using privileged/ administrative access rights. Accordingly, we are unable to comment
upon whether during the year there was any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where audit trail has been
enabled.

- the Company has used an accounting software (Alldigi (formerly Allsec)) which is operated by a third-party software service provider, for maintaining its payroll
books of account. On the examination of Service Organisation Controls report for maintaining its books of account(payroll) which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility, we noted that the audit log is not operated throughout the year at the application and database layer.

Accordingly, we are unable to comment upon whether during the year there was any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting|
software where audit trail has been enabled.
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As at and for the year ended December 31, 2023
Clause 2(b) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opimion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the|
Company does not have server physically located mn India for the daily backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode as|

cxplaim‘}l in note 47 to the financial statements.

Clause 2(h) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of auditor's report
The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph (b) above.

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2022
Clause 2(b} of Report on Other Legnl and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our exammnation of those books except that the|
backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained 1 electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India on daily
basis;

Clause 2(h) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected herewith are as stated in the paragraph (b} above:

(b) @ / included in the to the i * report issued under Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020, which do not

require any in the d Y
For the yenr ended December 31, 2024
Clause vii(a) of CARO 2020

are as foll

and services tax, provident fund, employees’ statel

The Company is regular in depositing with approprate authonties undisputed statutory dues including good.
insurance, mcome-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, cess and other statutory dues though there have been del of upto 60 days(amounting o INR 0.33 | in a few
cases of tax deducted at source, 328 days in case of tax collected at source{amounting to INR 0.05 ) and 79 days in case of professional taxes(amounting to INR 0.82 |.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable i respect of these|
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Clausc (viij(n) of CARO 2020

Thc Lomp.mv is regular i depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues includimg gouds and services tax, provident fund, employees” statel

ncome-tax, duty of , duty of excise, cess and other statutorv dues though there have been slight delavs in few cases i respect of income tax (tay]
d;‘duclcd m source) . Accordmng to the m[ﬂrmuunn and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures pertormed by us, no undisputed amounts pavable in)
respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Clause (vii)(a) of CARO 2020

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities d statutory dues including goods and services rax, provident fund, emplovees’ state|
insurance, income-tax. duty of customs, duty of excise, cess and other statutory dues though there have been slight delays in few cases in respect of provident fund,
income tax {tax deducred at source] and professional tax. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a periad of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

(¢) Material Regroupings

Appropriate re-groupings have been made in the restated summary statement of assets and ed ary statement of profit and loss and restated|
summary statement of cash flows, wherever required, by reclassi of the corresponding ttems of income, expenses, assets, abilities and cash flows, in order 1o
brng them in line with the accounting policies and ion as per the fi I snife of the Co any for the J h period ended September 30,
2025 prepared n accordance with amended Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, requirements of Ind AS @ and other upplxcable Ind AS prnciples and the
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {[ssue of Capital & Disclasure Requirementsj R i 2019, as d

The above statement should be rmd wnh V - Ma 1 ac polices and v notes forming part of f Si v St and|
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